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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Year ended 31 December,
BZ12A318LFE

2013 2012 Change
2013 & 20124 g5k
$'000 $'000
FET FET
Turnover X 706,134 699,555 1%
Profit from operations K Zm K 195,465 191,466 2%
Profit before non-controlling interests FEIZE AR A 2 A 128,331 123,928 4%
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A (50,397) (53,852) 6%
Profit attributable to owners EATEEA
of the Company FEfRER 77,934 70,076 1%
Earnings per shares BRER
Basic and diluted (HKD) EAR RS (BT) 0.19 0.17 12%
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Financial Highlights

IR RE
Turnover (Hks'000) Gross Margin
EEHE T ER
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20,000
0 0.00
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The weighted average number of shares in issue during the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011 was based on the assumption that the
415,000,000 shares before the listing on the Stock Exchange were in
issue, as if such shares had been outstanding throughout the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011.

HZE2012F %2011 12 A31BIEFENDETR
BEMEFHHETIREBERERORB M ETAE
415,000,000 RE #HITRMME L - MAZERNDD
HE2012 %2011 F 12 A3THEFE—ERFRE -
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and
the management of Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the
“Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Group for the year 2013.

The new Chinese administration has taken office since March 2013. The
Chinese government has maintained sustainable economic development
by focusing on domestic consumption which eventually will raise the
general household income. On the other hand, the consolidation process
of the China tobacco industry has continuously eliminated various lower
tier brand products. The Group's marketing strategy of switching sales
mix to higher tier products has benefited the Group's sales in 2013. As a
result, the profit attributable to the Group's equity shareholders recorded
an increase of approximately 11.1% from approximately HK$70.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012 to approximately HK$77.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESEE

RAR  BPCTURREER  BETE™TE - iRk
RAPBDIFRE ISR - BEEME O URZBRPUES
PE—-RXBLNEEBEM B RIEFN ST o

In the future, we have set our development goal

to secure a foothold in China, strengthen our

presence in Jiangsu Province, PRC, penetrate

through other provinces and strengthen our

Continuous efforts have been made to the research and development of
new products. The Group have successfully innovated a new film product
and it has already been under production and was profitable. The Group
will continuously invest in research and development and expects such
innovation would eventually boost its profitability in the future.

In general, it is glad to see that the Group was able to maintain the
same scale of operations as that of the previous year with total revenue
amounting to approximately HK$706.1 million in 2013. The Group’s net
profit stood at approximately HK$128.3 million.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK8 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2013. The dividend represents a payout ratio of
42.1% of the Company’s profit attributable to owners of the Company.
Subject to shareholders’ approval at the 2013 annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 28 May 2014, the proposed final dividend will
be paid on or about 16 June 2014 to shareholders who are registered at
the close of business on 5 June 2014.

materials manufacturer in China.

market position as a leading cigarette packaging

BASER NI ERNFE - AEBES KA %

H—BHAERER ZEMCRBEERANT
B o GRS A 4B 1% A OB 35 X TR BR B A R AR Y
RAARTTE A TGS

BEEME - RPIMARIAREBE MG EEFAR
K& ERE - 2013 FMANRAL706.1 BEBTT - &
EFEMFEN1283HEET

BEEEEZREEHE2013F12 A31 BILFERKE
& 8GR 8B - AR B AR B EAFE N AR R R IE
ERFIAA2.1% © FIRERMN 201455 A28 A R1T 2
ARR2013F/RFBAF RS EHER - Eik 2 KA
LB #572 20144 6 B 16 BATE IR T 201456 A
5 R EREARK D SR IMIRE o
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

We would like to take this opportunity to thank all of our stakeholders for
their enormous support and the ardent efforts of all our staff members
who have made valuable contributions during the year. On behalf of the
Board, | extend to all our business partners and shareholders, our sincere
thanks and appreciation for your continued support.

Guo, Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2014
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Organization Chart

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
JEZ= 2R 2B AR A A

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands)

(RS BEMRL)

100%

Sheen China Group Holdings Inc.
IBZE L BIE R AR A A
(Incorporated in BVI)

(REBE LS ML)

100%

HERE

M2013412831H

As at 31 December 2013

100%

Sheen China Group Holdings Limited
IEEEBERERAE
(Incorporated in Hong Kong)
(REBEMMRL)

51%

Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging
& Printing Science Technology Co., Ltd.
IRIERBRDRIRHRAR A
(Established in PRC)
(RHBIRL)

On 11 January 2013, Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science Technology Co.,
Ltd. and Huaian Hetai Investment Co., Ltd., has set up a new subsidiary,
Jiangsu Kingtai Packaging Technology Co., Ltd. with equity interest of

70% and 30% respectively.

Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited
B (F38) BRAH
(Incorporated in Hong Kong)
(REBEMALL)

100%

Qingdao Ener Packaging
Technology Co., Ltd.
BEEREERNRARAR 35%
(Established in PRC)
(R

Century Leader Asia Limited
BARENERAE
(Incorporated in Hong Kong)
(REBZML)

100%

Ling Xian Fei Yu
Import & Export (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd
FERRFEHD CRII) BRAF
(Established in PRC)

65%

(REFERL)

Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science Technology Co., Ltd.
IRESREREARAR
(Established in PRC)

(R EIRL)

70%

Jiangsu Kingtai Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.
IHESRERNFEERAH
(Established in PRC)

(R ERL)

FREFHERAT

* R2013F1ANMA - IHSBERRER QR HEE
ZARREARDRR L —RFTHNHERRTIEHS
» D RME70% K 30% K AL IE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R R eSS

OVERVIEW

The China economy has continued to grow steadily in 2013 and the
Group has reported an increase in turnover and profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013
when compared to the year ended 31 December 2012.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is a packaging materials
manufacturer and supplier with a leading position in Jiangsu Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), focusing on developing,
promoting and sales of imported films, self-manufactured films and
cigarette paper boxes. The Group's products can be broadly classified
into two categories, namely, (i) cigarette-related packaging materials
(comprising cigarette paper boxes, anti-counterfeiting films, other
cigarette films manufactured by the Group and imported films); and (ii)
non-cigarette-related packaging materials (being films for packaging non-
cigarette-related products manufactured by the Group). The Group has
made sales to (i) cigarette manufacturers; (i) other customers of cigarette
films; and (iii) customers of non-cigarette-related packaging materials.
The Group has two factories, namely Shuntai Factory, located in Huai'an
City in Jiangsu Province, accommodating production facilities for (i) the
printing and manufacturing of cigarette paper boxes; and (ii) the printing
of anti-counterfeiting films; and Ener Factory, located in Qingdao City
in Shandong Province, accommodating production facilities for the
manufacturing of films.

RESULTS OF OPERATION
Turnover

The Group’s turnover, which represents the sales value of goods sold
less returns, discounts and value added taxes and other sales taxes, is
principally derived from the manufacturing and trading of cigarette-
related and non-cigarette related packaging materials. The Group
reported turnover of approximately HK$706.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2013, an increase of approximately 0.9% compared to
approximately HK$699.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Turnover
EER
119,666 ..586,468
17% . 83%

127,306
18%

372,249
82% )

. Cigarette-related
packaging materials

EIERB RN

. Non-cigarette related Total &&f
packaging materials 2013 706,134
FEBEMBEME 2012 699,555

Cigarette-related packaging materials

The increase in turnover from cigarette-related packaging materials
by approximately 2.5% to approximately HK$586.5 million (2012:
approximately HK$572.2 million) was mainly contributed by the growth
in sales of the Group's trading of imported films by approximately 26.3%,
from approximately HK$62.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 to approximately HK$78.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2013, primarily as a result of the increase in the demand from one of the
Group's trading customers.

Non-cigarette-related packaging materials

Revenue from the Group’s manufacturing and sale of non-cigarette-
related packaging materials decreased by approximately HK$7.6 million,
or approximately 6.0%, from approximately HK$127.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012 to approximately HK$119.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013. Due to the limitation of the production
capacity of the Ener Factory, the Group has continuously adjusted its
production and sales plan by switching the manufacturing and sale of
non-cigarette-related packaging BOPP films to other cigarette BOPP films
with a higher gross profit margin.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR I

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately HK$12.1 million, or
approximately 4.8%, from approximately HK$254.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012 to approximately HK$266.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The Group's gross profit margin increased by
approximately 1.4% from approximately 36.4% for the year ended 31
December 2012 to approximately 37.8% for the year ended 31 December
2013.

Gross Profit

E7

ENRENR

AEEBNENHEEZ2012F12 431 BIEEENL
2545 BEEB TN 121 BEBTHLA8% =H
F2013F 12 A31 BIEFEMLI2666 AEBTT ° A
EENEFNZRHEZ202F12A31BIEFEENY
36.4%IEMA1.4% Z &= 2013F 12 A31HIEFE
HI#737.8% °

[l Cigarette paper boxes
BREEE

Trading of imported films:
HOHRES

. Anti-counterfeiting films . Non-cigarette related

By s p packaging materials
B EAERBDEME
Other cigarette films Total &%t
EAh B EHE 2013 266,647
2012 254,522

,,,,,,,

OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME

The Group’s other revenue and net income recorded a decrease of
approximately HK$3.4 million, or approximately 21.0%, when compared
with that for the year ended 31 December 2012. The decrease was a
result of the decrease of compensation remedies from a supplier regarding
the defected imported films.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

The Group’s distribution costs increased by approximately HK$3.5 million,
or approximately 29.4%, from approximately HK$11.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012 to approximately HK$15.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013, primarily due to the increase of marketing
expenses for the maintenance and extension of the Group's existing
client base. As a result, the Group has obtained new customers from
southern china region for the Group's products in 2013. The increase was
also partially contributed by the increase of transportation expenses of
approximately HK$1.7 million to approximately HK$11.3 million (2012:
approximately HK$9.6 million) generated from such distant sales when
compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2012.

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$1.4
million, or approximately 2.1%, from approximately HK$66.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012 to approximately HK$67.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The increase was due to the
increase of staff cost by approximately HK$7.9 million attributable to the
expansion of the Group's operation and compliance staff for listing and
the professional services fee for compliance matters in relation to listing
by approximately HK$3.0 million, which was partially offset by the one-off
listing expenses of approximately HK$10.1 million paid in 2012.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs decreased by approximately 7.1% from
approximately HK$21.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
approximately HK$19.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2013,
primarily due to the net repayment of bank borrowings by approximately
HK$30.0 million over the year ended 31 December 2013.

INCOME TAX

The Group’s income tax increased by approximately HK$1.0 million from
approximately HK$46.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
approximately HK$47.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2013,
primarily due to the reversal of deferred liabilities on withholding tax in
respect of dividend paid by the Group's PRC subsidiaries in 2012 offsetting
by the decrease of the provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2013. This
also led to the decrease in effective tax rate when compared with that for
the year ended 31 December 2012 to the year ended 31 December 2013.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing factors, profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company increased by approximately 11.1% from approximately
HK$70.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to approximately
HK$77.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2013.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the cash and cash equivalent of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$61.2 million compared with approximately
HK$79.2 million as at 31 December 2012. Such decrease was mainly due
to the cash outflow of investing and financing activities offset by the cash
inflow from operating activities.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s net cash inflow of
operating activities, net cash outflow of investing activities and net cash
outflow of financing activities amounted to approximately HK$181.0
million, HK$27.2 million and HK$172.4 million respectively. The Group
primarily uses cash inflow of operating activities and banking facilities to
satisfy the requirement of working capital.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SEAERECIS & il

Borrowings and gearing ratio

Total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2013
was approximately HK$272.2 million denominated in RMB. The Group's
gearing ratio, measured by net debt divided by shareholders’ equity as at
the end of the year and multiplied by 100%, decreased from 67% as at
31 December 2012 to 42% as at 31 December 2013. It was primarily due
to the decrease of bank loans for working capital.

Exposure to fluctuation in exchange rate

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through purchases made by
the PRC subsidiaries which give rise to receivables, payables, cash balances
and bank loans that are denominated in RMB. Presently, the Group has no
hedging policy with respect to the foreign exchange exposure.

As the functional currencies for all subsidiaries in the PRC are RMB, these
subsidiaries are not exposed to any currency risk due to the exchange
rate movement of RMB. For subsidiaries established outside of the PRC,
they have no material financial assets and liabilities denominated in RMB.
Accordingly, the Group’s exposure to RMB currency risk is insignificant.

Capital expenditure

During year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s total capital
expenditure amounted to approximately HK$5.4 million (2012: HK$27.7
million), which was used in the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had pledged its fixed assets with
net book value of approximately HK$280.6 million (31 December 2012:
HK$289.8 million) for the purpose of securing loans with carrying value of
approximately HK$246.7 million (31 December 2012: HK$277.5 million).

Significant investment and material acquisitions

On 11 January 2013, Jiangsu Sheen Colour and Huaian Hetai Investment
Company Limited, a third party, have set up Jiangsu Kingtai Packaging
Technology Company Limited in the PRC where equity interests is owned
by them as to 70% and 30% respectively. Jiangsu Kingtai Packaging
Technology Company Limited is principally engaged in trading of
aluminium foil membrane for cigarette packaging.

On 26 November 2013, the Company announced that it had entered
into a cornerstone investor placing agreement with, among others, Huaxi
Holdings Company Limited (“Huaxi”), pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to subscribe at the offer price (as defined in the
prospectus of Huaxi dated 26 November 2013) for such number of shares
of Huaxi which may be purchased with the amount of HK$20,000,000
(rounded down to the nearest whole board lot of 2,000 shares of
Huaxi), which was arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between the
Company and Huaxi. The final number of shares of Huaxi subscribed by
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the Company was 14,814,000. Huaxi is a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
cigarette-related packaging materials in the People’s Republic of China.
The shares of Huaxi are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 01689). For further details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26 November 2013.

On 4 April 2014, the Company (as purchaser) entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Guo (as vendor) for the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Sheen Tai International Investment
Ltd., which, together with its subsidiaries, are principally engaged in
development and sales of residential property in Xuzhou, Jiangsu, the PRC,
at a consideration of HK$165,000,000 to be satisfied by the Company
issuing to Mr. Guo (or his direct or indirect wholly-owned company) the
convertible bond convertible into 99,517,490 conversion shares at the
initial conversion price of HK$1.658 (subject to adjustment).

The aforesaid acquisition constitutes a major transaction under the
Listing Rules and is subject to, among other things, the shareholders’
approval requirement, and a connected transaction under the Listing
Rules and is subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements.

The aforesaid acquisition is subject to certain conditions precedent
which have not yet been fulfilled. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 4 April 2014.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2012: Nil).

Use of proceeds from the Company’s initial public
offering

As at 31 December 2013, the aggregated net proceeds from the initial
public offering of approximately HK$110,557,000 had been used for
strategic acquisition, repayment of bank loan, expansion of market share,
strengthening product development, enhancing quality management and
general working capital. All proceeds had been used in accordance with
the proposed application set out in the “Use of proceeds” section in the
prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2012 (“the Prospectus”).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SEAERECIS & il

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed 412 employees (as
compared with 398 employees as at 31 December 2012) with total
staff cost of approximately HK$55.1 million incurred for the year ended
31 December 2013 (as compared with HK$47.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2012). The Group’s remuneration packages are generally
structured with reference to market terms and individual merits. The
Company has also adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and a Share
Option Scheme to provide incentive or reward to high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.08 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2013 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 5 June
2014, the record date for determining entitlements of the shareholders
to the proposed final dividend. The proposed final dividend is subject to
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM") and a resolution will be proposed to the shareholders for voting
at the AGM. If the resolution for the proposed final dividend is passed at
the AGM, the proposed final dividend will be payable on or about 16 June
2014.

In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited at level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
3 June 2014.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors #{T=%E

EEREREEEERE

Mr. Guo Yumin (20 % [£), aged 52, is the founder and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June 2012. He is now also
the director of all the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Guo is responsible for the overall
management and formulation of business strategy of the Group.

Mr. Guo graduated from the distant-learning college of the School of the Central
Committee of Communist Party of China (FF AP R ER MR IR ET) in 1988,
majoring in economic management. Since 1998, Mr. Guo has been engaging in
cigarette packaging business and established a strong business tie with the senior
members of some cigarette manufacturers. He brings extensive business and
management experience in commercial business to our management team.

In 2005, Mr. Guo established Guangdong Province Jiangsu Chamber of Commerce and he
had been the chairperson for six consecutive years. In 2010, Mr. Guo established Shenzhen
Xuzhou Chamber of Commerce and has been its legal representative since then.

Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia, an executive Director and is the father of Mr. Guo
Cheng, a senior management staff.

Mr. Guo is the director of Sheen China Group Holdings Inc., Sheen China Group
Holdings Limited, Century Leader Asia Limited, Ling Xian Fei Yu Import & Export
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“Ling Xian Fei Yu"”), Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sheen
HK"), Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging Printing Science Technology Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu
Shuntai”), Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co., Ltd (“Qingdao Ener”), Jiangsu
Sheen Color Science Technology Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu Sheen Color”) and Jiangsu Kingtai
Packaging and Printing Science Technology Company Limited (“Jiangsu Kingtai”), the
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Guo is also the sole director and sole shareholder of
Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited, the controlling Shareholder.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEEE

Ms. Xia Yu (£)2), aged 43, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June
2012. She is the legal representative of Qingdao Ener and she is responsible for
general management of the Group.

Ms. Xia studied financial accounting (distant-learning) in Jiangsu Commerce College
(TER R EFERIER) (which was combined with other colleges to form Yangzhou
University) and graduated in June 1992. Ms. Xia had 16 years of experience in the
cigarette-related business, as well as business management and financial management
in cigarette packaging business.

Ms. Xia is the director of Sheen HK and Qingdao Ener, the subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo and the step-mother of Mr. Guo Cheng, a senior
management staff.
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EENEREEEEE

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (Z@[5), aged 47, has been appointed as an executive
Director and President of the Company with effect from 1 January 2013. Mr. Zeng is
responsible for the overall management and business of the Group.

Mr. Zeng graduated from Zhejiang University (#1/TA%22) with a Bachelor of Physics
degree in 1988 and obtained a Master degree of Materials Science from Zhejiang
University in 1991. From 1996 to 2010, Mr. Zeng joined the business unit of a
chemical company, which was first acquired by UCB Films (Asia Pacific) Pty Ltd. and
subsequently by Innovia Films (Commercial) Ltd. Mr. Zeng possesses more than 17
years of experience in the cigarette-related industry in the PRC and is familiar with the
practice of the tobacco market in the PRC.

Mr. Zeng is the director of Qingdao Ener and Jiangsu Kingtai, the subsidiaries of the
Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEEE

Mr. He Lijun ({A13Z#), aged 45, has been appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 1 January 2013. Mr. He joined the Group in 2010 and he is now also the
general manager of Jiangsu Shuntai and the vice president of the Group. Mr. He is
responsible for the general operation of the Group’s production.

Mr. He studied in the department of industrial management and engineering of
the School of Management of Shanghai Jiao Tong University (/8% @AE) and
graduated in 1989. He holds a bachelor degree of engineering. Before joining the
Group, Mr. He was the vice general manager of a company which also engaged
in, amongst others, cigarette-related packaging, and was responsible for business
administration, human resources management and corporate governance. Mr. He is
familiar with the trade practice of the cigarette-related industry in the PRC and has
extensive personal network.

Mr. He is the director of Jiangsu Shuntai, Qingdao Ener, Jiangsu Sheen Color and
Jiangsu Kingtai, the subsidiaries of the Group.
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EENEREEEEE

Mr. Huang Bo (&), aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June
2012. Mr. Huang joined the Group since 2009 and he is now responsible for the
financing activities of the Group.

Mr. Huang completed a post-secondary part-time course in economic management
at Party School of Chinese Communist Party of Shandong Province (FF IR E %
®), and graduated in 1996. From 2000 to 2003, Mr. Huang was employed to
work at the Qingdao municipal government in economic and auditing fields. From
2004 to November 2009, Mr. Huang started working in a packaging company, and
became the chief accounting officer in 2007. In 2009, Mr. Huang was certified as
an accreditation grade senior (BRI &AL 25TEM) by International Profession
Certification Association (BIFfR5E 1% ). Mr. Huang has more than 8 years of
experience in financial management in cigarette packaging trading field.
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Mr. Bau Siu Fung (#2/02), aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director on
22 June 2012. Mr. Bau joined the Group in 2011 and he is now also the company
secretary and chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Bau is responsible for
financial management and compliance of the Group.

Mr. Bau graduated from Idaho State University with a Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accountancy and Finance. Mr. Bau has more than 10 years of
experience in the accounting and auditing field. Mr. Bau is currently a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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EENEREEEEE

Independent non-executive Directors B IEHITESE

Ms. Fan Qing (52f5), aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 June 2012. Ms. Fan has extensive experience in business management
and in-depth knowledge in the financial investment in both the PRC and Hong Kong.

Ms. Fan received a master's degree in business administration from the Graduate
School of Renmin University of China (7 Bl A R KZ#7E4£PRx) in 2000. She obtained
a certificate issued by the Shenzhen stock exchange after completing a training course
for the senior management member of a listed company in the PRC. She had been
serving as the vice-president of Shenzhen Capital Group Co. Ltd. (RYITTAIFTIRE &=
EBFRAA)) for nine years. Ms. Fan is currently the chairman of the board of directors
of an investment management company in Shenzhen and the independent director of
Shenzhen Terca Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 52002213) (RYIHSBRIERRRMN B
RARD.
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EENEREEEEE

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (75 %), BBS, JP, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Fong was admitted as a barrister and solicitor
in Ontario, Canada in 1980, a solicitor in England and Wales in 1986 and in Hong
Kong in 1987. He has practiced law for over 30 years and is a member of the law
societies of Hong Kong, Upper Canada and England.

Mr. Fong received his engineering degree in Canada in 1974 and his Juris Doctor
degree from Osgoode Hall Law School in Toronto in 1978. Mr. Fong is appointed by
the Ministry of Justice of China as one of the China-appointed Attesting Officers in
Hong Kong. Mr. Fong is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Advisory Council on Food
and Environmental Hygiene, a member of the Hong Kong Communications Authority.
Mr. Fong is currently the independent non-executive director of Guangdong Land
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) (stock code:
NH(BGEMITERBER AT (AIEBEEEESEEEMRAF)), Greenland Hong
Kong Holdings Limited (formerly known as SPG Land (Holdings) Limited) (stock code:
337) (4 BB ZERBR A A (ATERE S B (8 AR A F])), China Investment
Development Limited (stock code: 204) (FE#RE B A A]), China Qilfield
Services Limited (stock code: 2883) (/& HRIERMDER A F]), and Evergreen
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 238) (K E1EES (£ E)) A% A R A 7).
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EENEREEEEE

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (E#X), aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in auditing,
accounting and finance.

Mr. Lo received a bachelor’s degree of business administration from the University of
Hong Kong in 1993 and a master’s degree of professional accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2000. He is a certified public accountant, a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, fellow member
of CPA Australia and an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Lo is a practising accountant in Hong Kong, and has become
the deputy managing partner of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited since 2008. Mr. Lo is
currently the independent non-executive director of Sun Hing Vision Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 125) X2 EEIFRABBR AT, North Mining Shares
Company Limited (stock code: 433) At HEZE MR (D BFRAF]) and China Zhongwang
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1333) (F Bl ARAEIER A TR A A)).
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Back row, order from left to right

Mr. Huang Bo (Executive Director of the Company)

Ms. Li Li (Vice President of the Company)

Mr. Dong Zhenghua (In-house Legal Adviser of the Company)
Mr. Jiang Chang (General Manager of a subsidiary)

Mr. Ma Jin (Vice-General Manager of a subsidiary)

Mr. Zhu Hengjin (Human Resource Manager of the Company)
Ms. Tong Xiaomeng (Director of the subsidiaries)

Ms. Li Jing (Director of the subsidiaries)

Mr. Yu Xiaofeng (Director of the subsidiaries)

Front row, order from left to right
Mr. Guo Cheng (Vice President of the Company)
Mr. He Lijun (Executive Director and Vice President of the Company)
Mr. Bau Siu Fung (Executive Director, Company Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company)
Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman of the Company)
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (Executive Director and President of the Company)
Ms. Xia Yu (Executive Director of the Company)
Mr. Xu Weimin (Vice President of the Company)
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EENEREEEEE

Senior Management

Mr. Guo Cheng (5B5), aged 28, studied in courses of international
trade in RMIT University. Mr. Guo has years of experience in investing and
corporate management of the cigarette packaging material industry. He is
currently the vice president of the Company. Mr. Guo Cheng is the son of
Mr. Guo, an executive Director and the step-son of Ms. Xia, an executive
Director.

Mr. Xu Weimin (7% ), aged 45, graduated from the Finance and
Economics School of Suzhou University and China Europe International
Business School, and received his Bachelor of Economics and Master of
Business Administration. Mr. Xu served as the Director of Finance and
Trade Division of Xuzhou Municipal Government in his early years, and
subsequently served as the Financial Controller in the affiliates under
China Resources. He joined the Group in 2012. He is currently the vice
president of the Company and in charge of investment businesses.

Ms. Li Li (223%), aged 30, received her Bachelor of Arts degree from Sun Yat-
sen University in 2006 and Master’s degree in media from the University of
Sydney in Australia in 2009. She worked in Phoenix TV of Hong Kong and was
responsible for international market operations. She joined the Group in 2013.
She is currently the vice president of the Company and responsible for business
development.

Mr. Dong Zhenghua (= B %), aged 59, graduated from a self-taught
course in Chinese literature from Nanjing Normal University (F3 & Al&5K
&) in 1986, and obtained the qualification certification as an economist
(#ERM) in 1993, Mr. Dong passed the uniform examination organised
by the Chinese government authorities and obtained the qualifications
for enterprise legal adviser ({>3£)%/2EE/) in 2003. Mr. Dong possesses
extensive experience in advising and handling corporate-related legal
matters. Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong graduated from a 2-year
course in laws jointly organised by the China University of Political Science
and Law ((FBIEUEAE) and the Open University of China (58 EEER
K£) and obtained the qualification of intermediate professional manager
as approved by the Jiangsu Province Enterprise Professional Manager
Training & Certification Committee (T&RE DR EELIE AT E K
HIEARFEZE E ). Mr. Dong is currently the in-house legal advisor of the
Company and is responsible for advising on legal matters of the Group.

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

EREEE

WHEE - 2858 REERRRAARTAZHRES
RIE - MEBRERRTERASFRERDEERL
B o MIRERR BRI - SEHEERNITESISL
ENRFRMTEEERETNMET -

TRAREE A5ER - RBREERBNAKBHLELR
MPRBER IEEk  ESCESETMIREIER
T o HFEERFAEGMNMBNETHERE  BEE
EEBTBEEETMBBE - R2012F ALK
£8, BEARBRIBE  DEREER -

7+ 308% 0 N2006 FEEH I ASBEBE+
{7 - 2009 FESRINEBEASEEE SN - 85t
BREABRER  AEABRMHEE - 152013
FEMARED  BAEARRBREBY - aEEHORE -

EIESLE 5957 0 1986 F R E N RAR & A Z A
B2 EERE - W 1993F RS EMERES -
ERAERBTFEBTIPIEGNE—EH - WK 2003
FRELELZBEMER - EEAERNCERBEESE
MR AREERFEEEH - RIMAXRERR - £
EERENPEBIZASHEHPREFERASHE R
MR FHEERE  WRSIHECERELEA
AREBB ) ERBFLZEER THHRRIXLEAE
1% BRARTARRTINEERER - AEAREBE
BEBHEHAER -



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Li Jing (), aged 33, passed the higher education self-taught
examination for economic management of the China University of Mining
and Technology (FFBITE %K) in 2005. In 2009, Ms. Li graduated from
the distant-learning college of the School of the Central Committee
of Communist Party of China (4 3/ RERMIER KIFZRT), majoring
in economic management. Ms. Li joined the Group since 2002 and is
currently the director of Jiangsu Sheen Colour and Jiangsu Kingtai.

Mr. Yu Xiaofeng (&2 1£), aged 50, graduated from Zhejiang Institute
of Engineering (3T TEFT) (which is currently known as Zhejiang
University of Technology) with a bachelor degree of science in 1983. Mr.
Yu joined the Group in 2002 and is currently the director of Jiangsu Sheen
Colour, Jiangsu Shuntai and Jiangsu Kingtai and also the chief technology
officer of Jiangsu Shuntai and Jiangsu Sheen Colour. Mr. Yu has extensive
experience in the technology aspect, production and facility management
of the printing related business. Mr. Yu was familiar with the technology
in connection with the printing of cigarette films and paper boxes.

Ms. Tong Xiaomeng (Z E #7), aged 37, graduated from Jilin Railway
Economic School (BFMEFEALFHZMR) in 1996, majoring in financial
accounting in transportation field. In 2002, Ms. Tong passed the
intermediate level of national examination of department of finance in
the PRC and was issued a certificate to certify her qualification level in
accountancy. Ms. Tong joined the Group in 2008 and is currently the
director of Jiangsu Sheen Colour and Jiangsu Shuntai. Ms. Tong possesses
extensive years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr. Jiang Chang (7I#), aged 42, studied applied chemistry (distant-
learning) and graduated from Hubei University in 2000. Mr. Jiang had
engaged in the packaging materials business for more than 10 years and
had in-depth experience in the production facilities and the production
management in relation to the manufacturing of BOPP films, in particular,
films for cigarette packaging. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in 2010. He is
currently the general manager of Qingdao Ener and is responsible for its
operation of production process.

Mr. Ma Jin (55%), aged 46, received a master's degree of EMBA (executive
master of business administration) from the Peking University (Jt = A 23)
in 2009. Mr. Ma has extensive experience in corporate management of
packaging (including cigarette-related packaging) business and is currently
the Vice-sales manager of Qingdao Ener.

Mr. Zhu Hengjin (%£18%%), aged 27, obtained a certificate of diploma of
hairdressing salon management from Headmasters Advanced Academy
in 2008. In 2011, Mr. Zhu joined the Group and currently the human
resources manager of the Company.
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The Directors recognize the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously observe the principles of good corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders and devote considerable effort
to identifying and formalizing best practice.

The Group's corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board considered that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code for the year ended 31 December 2013, except for
the deviation from code provision A.1.8 of the Code as stated below.

Code Provision A.1.8

Under the code provision A.1.8 of the Code, an issuer should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its directors.
With regular and timely communications among the Directors and the
management of the Group, the management of the Group believes that
all potential claims and legal actions against the Directors can be handled
effectively, and the possibility of actual litigation against the Directors is
low. The Company will consider to make such an arrangement as and
when it thinks necessary.

The key corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised as
follows:

Appointment, Re-Election and Retirement of the
Directors

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation.

Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Fong Wo, Felix and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy will retire as
Directors at the annual general meeting, and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Each of Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu, Mr. Huang Bo and Mr. Bau Siu Fung,
all being executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 13 July
2012 and may be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ prior written notice.
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Each of Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all
being independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing from 13
July 2012 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least three
months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Zeng Xiangyang and Mr. He Lijun, all being executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of commencing from 1 January 2013 and expiring on 12 July 2015 and
may be terminated by either party by giving at least three months’ written
notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code") as the required standard for securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions for the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to
the date of this annual report.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises six executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as at the date of this report, details of which are set
out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (President)
Mr. He Lijun

Mr. Huang Bo

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

The brief biographic details of and relationship between the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 17 to 27.
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The composition of the Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The
Company has complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and
(2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2013.
All independent non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for
assessment of their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Mr. Guo Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu. Save as disclosed above, there
are no other relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board's primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of other
stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board's approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group’s business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions
of the Group are delegated to the management.

The Board is also delegated with the corporate governance functions
under code provision D.3.1 of the Code. The Board has reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.

Board Meetings and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior
to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views
at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments on the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.
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All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent as at the date of this annual report.
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Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee  EZE2013F 12 A31 HIEFERITHARAIEEES
meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination Committee % * EZZ B8 8% FWEZEGGR  BEREET
meetings and general meetings of the Company held during the year & MREASHFEFIBEIIOT -
ended 31 December 2013 are summarized as follows:
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board committee Committee Committee General
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
B HM R’E
Ezgen ZE888% Z8883 ZE88H REAS
Executive Directors BITES
M. Guo Yumin (Chairman) DEREE(ZE) 5/5 N/A TR i N N
Ms. Xia Yu BExL 5/5 N/A R N/A NER N/A T F n
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (President) SRGEE(H74H) 55 N/A TiEF NA TER NA T iE R 101
M He Lijun EivE=p3 55 NIA g N/A g NA TR "
Mr. Huang Bo BREE 5/5 NATER NANEF NA R ER 11
Mr. Bau Siu Fung LIS 55 N/A TiE A NA TER N/A 18R 171
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ms. Fan Qing BBLT 5/5 5/5 171 17 17
M. Fong Wo, Felx L3 565 55 NA T NA TER "
M. Lo Wa Kei, Roy EEfiE 55 55 " " "
Board Committees EEZEY
The Board has established specific committees, namely the Company's ZBEEODKVETEEE X DRAARTNEZEE
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee @ ([FZLEE])  HHLES ((FHEES]) MiE

(the "Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), with written terms of reference which are
available for viewing on the website of the Company to assist them in the
efficient implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have
been delegated to the above committees.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June 2012 with
written terms of reference which are in compliance with the code
provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
mainly to review the material investment, capital operation and material
financial system of the Company; to review the accounting policy,
financial position and financial reporting procedures of the Company;
to communicate with external audit firms; to assess the performance of
internal financial and audit personnel; and to assess the internal control
of the Company. The Audit Committee currently has three members
comprising Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (Chairman), Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Fong
Wo, Felix, all being independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the final results of the Group for 2012 and the 2013 interim
results and report of the Company. The Audit Committee had reviewed
the Group’s internal controls for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2013 had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual report, and
confirmed that this annual report complies with the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2013. Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee at the
Audit Committee meetings are set out above.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the terms of the remuneration
package of each Director and member of senior management, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof;
and (i) reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual executive
Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any) payable to them.
No Director shall participate in any discussion about his or her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three
members, namely, Ms. Fan Qing (Chairperson), Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both
of which are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Guo Yumin,
an executive Director. The majority of members of the Remuneration
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration
of the Directors was determined with reference to their respective
experience, responsibilities with the Group and general market conditions.
The Company has adopted the Code to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the
members of senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the Year. Details
of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee meeting are set out
above.

At the meeting, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior executives and
reviewed the remuneration packages and performance of the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with code
provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
include the review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and to
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships, assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman), an executive Director,
Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both of which are independent
non-executive Directors. The majority of members of the Nomination
Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 December 2013. Details of the attendance of the Nomination
Committee meeting set out above.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, reviewed the qualifications of the
Directors, the progress on the implementation of the board diversity policy
and other related matters of the Company.

Diversity of the Board

The Stock Exchange issued certain amendments to the Code contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules in relation to diversity of the members
of the Board effective on 1 September 2013. In achieving the diversity
of the members of the Board, the Board may consider various factors
such as gender, age, cultural and educational background or professional
experience. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee had
been amended to take into account its responsibilities to monitor the
implementation of policy in relation to the diversity of the members of the
Board.
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The Group has adopted policy in relation to the diversity of the members
of the Board and the summary of the policy is as follows:

(1)  selection of Board members will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; and

(2)  the Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
diversity policy from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the
diversity policy.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent of the Company.

Professional Development of the Directors

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2013, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin, Mr. Zeng
Xiang Yang, Ms. Xia Yu, Mr. Huang Bo, Mr. He Lijun, Mr. Bau Siu Fung,
Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, had participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Directors had provided the relevant
record to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to
all Directors for their continuous professional development. Each Director
is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that he is fully aware
of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Group. All
the Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating any suitable training to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Senior Management’s Remuneration
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The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group in the year ~ANEBEREZE2013F 12 A3 BIEFEZSREERE
ended 31 December 2013 falls within the following band: e R TEE :

Number of

individuals

A

RMB1,000,000 or below AE% 1,000,000 THAT 9
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the report of the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. There are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

External Auditor's Remuneration

The Company engaged KPMG as its external auditor for the year ended
31 December 2013. The Audit Committee has been notified of the
nature and the service charges of non-audit services for reviewing interim
results to be performed by KPMG and considered that these non-audit
services have no adverse effect on the independence of the auditor.
There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditors. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the fee payable to
KPMG in respect of its statutory audit services provided to the Company
was RMB850,000. Fees for non-audit services for the same period was
RMB785,000.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group's particular needs and the risks to which they are exposed.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure, maintaining proper
accounting records and ensuring the reliability of financial information
used for business and publication. Qualified management of the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an ongoing basis.
The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and is satisfied that the Group has fully
complied with the Code in respect of internal controls during the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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The Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an Extraordinary
Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the company secretary of the Company
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors

In order to keep Shareholders well informed of the business activities and
direction of the Group, information about the Group has been provided
to the Shareholders through financial reports and announcements. The
Company has established its own corporate website www.sheentai.com
as a channel to facilitate effective communication with its Shareholders
and the public. The Company will continue to enhance communications
and relationships with its shareholders and investors. A shareholders
communication policy was adopted on 22 June 2012 to comply with code
provision E.1.4 of the Code.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries directly
to the Company through the following e-mail: ivan.bau@sheentai.com.
Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing. Contact details are as follows:

Bau Siu Fung

HK Address:  Room 1903,19/F Jubilee Centre. No.18 Fenwick Street,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3998 4118/3998 4128

Fax: (852) 3998 4100

E-mail: ivan.bau@sheentai.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board
and/or relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to
answer the Shareholders’ questions.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles of
Association of the Company for including a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out above
in the paragraph headed “The Shareholders’ Right to Convene an
Extraordinary Meeting”.

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person (other than a retiring Director) shall be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting unless a notice in writing of
the intention to propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the Head Office or at the Registration Office no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director is posted on the website of the Company.

Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

There had been no significant changes in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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The Directors are pleased to present to the Shareholders this annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 (the “Year”).

Principal Activities

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Results

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 55 of this annual report.

Final Dividends

The Board recommends a payment of final dividend of HK$0.08 per Share
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$0.10 per share).

Closure of the Register of Members

For determining entitlement to attend the AGM, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 27 May 2014 (Tuesday) to 28 May
2014 (Wednesday), both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of Shares will be registered. The record date will be 28 May 2014
(Wednesday). In order to qualify for attending the forthcoming AGM all
transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 26 May
2014 (Monday).

For determining entitlement to the final dividend (if approved at the
forthcoming annual general meeting), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 4 June 2014 (Wednesday) to 5 June 2014
(Thursday), both days inclusive. The record date will be 5 June 2014
(Thursday). The latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration
will be 4:30 p.m. on 3 June 2014 (Tuesday).
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

Bank Borrowings

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2013 are
set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements in this annual report and
the Prospectus, is set out on page 132. This summary does not form part
of the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s paid up capital for the Year are set out in note
23 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of HK$77.9
million (2012: HK$70.0 million) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity in this annual report.

Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant Investment

On 26 November 2013, the Company announced that it had entered
into a cornerstone investor placing agreement with, among others, Huaxi
Holdings Company Limited (“Huaxi”), pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to subscribe at the offer price (as defined in the
prospectus of Huaxi dated 26 November 2013) for such number of shares
of Huaxi which may be purchased with the amount of HK$20,000,000
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(rounded down to the nearest whole board lot of 2,000 shares of Huaxi),
which was arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between the Company
and Huaxi. Huaxi is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of cigarette-related
packaging materials in the People’s Republic of China. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26 November
2013.

On 11 January 2013, Jiangsu Sheen Colour and Huaian Hetai Investment
Co. Ltd., a third party, has set up a new subsidiary, with equity interests
of 70% and 30% respectively. The subsidiary named Jiangsu Kingtai
Packaging Technology Co., Ltd is principally engaged in manufacturing
and trading of aluminium foil films for cigarette packaging.

During the Year, save as disclosed above, there was no material
acquisition, disposal or investment by the Group.

Material Related Parties Transactions

The material related party transactions in relation to the key management
personnel remuneration for the Directors as disclosed in Note 26(a) to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report are connected
transactions exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.31(6) of the
Listing Rules.

The material related party transactions in relation to the amount due to
controlling Shareholder and Director — Mr. Guo Yumin as disclosed in
Note 26(b) to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report
are connected transactions exempt from reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material related
party transactions disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report did not fall under the definition of
“connected transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as
the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required
to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 28 February 2013, Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.
("Qingdao Ener”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into a written agreement (the “Agreement”) with Qingdao Justo
Packaging Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Justo”), pursuant to which Qingdao Justo
purchased approximately 141 tonnes of cigarette films from Qingdao Ener
with a total consideration of RMB3,188,344.48.

Qingdao Ener had been selling cigarette films to Qingdao Ener. The
entering into of the Agreement to sell cigarette films is to continue the
business relationship between Qingdao Ener and Qingdao Justo. The
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) consider
that the Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder are in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and are on normal
commercial terms after arm’s length negotiation, and consider that the
transaction contemplated thereunder are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

To the best knowledge of the Directors and after making reasonable
enquiry, the equity interests of Qingdao Justo are owned indirectly as
to 30% by Shenzhen lJinjia Color Printing Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Jinjia”), while Shenzhen Jinjia also holds 49% equity interests in Jiangsu
Shuntai (an indirect 51% owned subsidiary of the Company). Qingdao
Justo is hence an associate of Shenzhen Jinjia and thus a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transaction amount
contemplated under the Agreement, when aggregated with the past
transaction amount for the sale of cigarette films by Qingdao Ener to
Qingdao Justo from 1 January 2013, constituted a continuing connected
transaction subject to reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements, but exempt from independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 28 February 2013 (the “2013 Announcement”).

The sales of cigarettes films by Qingdao Ener to Qingdao Justo pursuant
to the Agreement as set out in the 2013 Announcement was completed
on 27 March 2013.

Subsequently, Qingdao Ener had continued to sell cigarette films to
Qingdao Justo, and the total amount of such subsequent sales of
cigarette films by Qingdao Ener to Qingdao Justo from 28 March 2013 to
31 December 2013 was RMB73,892,698.19 (equivalent to approximately
HK$93,535,061) in aggregate.
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Under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, such subsequent sales of cigarette
films, in aggregate, constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions which should be subject to the reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements.
Due to the misunderstanding of the management of the Group regarding
the shareholding structure of Qingdao Justo at the relevant time, the
Company has omitted to comply with the said requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for such sales.

As Qingdao Ener had been selling and would continue to sell cigarette
films to Qingdao Justo, on 19 March 2014, Qingdao Ener and Qingdao
Justo entered into the an agreement (the “2014 Agreement”) in respect of
the sale of cigarette films by Qingdao Ener to Qingdao Justo, pursuant to
which Qingdao Justo purchased approximately 660.57 tonnes of cigarette
films from Qingdao Ener with a total consideration of RMB13,434,175.67.

To the best knowledge of the Directors and after making reasonable
enquiry, the equity interests of Qingdao Justo are owned indirectly as to
30% by Shenzhen Jinjia, while Shenzhen Jinjia also holds 49% equity
interests in Jiangsu Shuntai (an indirect 51%-owned subsidiary of the
Company). Qingdao Justo is hence an associate of Shenzhen Jinjia
and thus a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the 2014 Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that the
2014 Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder are
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and are on
normal commercial terms after arm’s length negotiation. The Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that the
2014 Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other than
the profit ratio) for the transaction amount contemplated under the 2014
Agreement, when aggregated with the past transaction amount for the
sale of cigarette films by Qingdao Ener to Qingdao Justo from 1 January
2014, will exceed 1% but will be less than 5%, the 2014 Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder are only subject to reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements, but is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 19 March 2014.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
75% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 58% of the total sales for
the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 67% of the total purchases for the Year and purchase from
the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
36% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

Directors

The Directors are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (President)
Mr. He Lijun

Mr. Huang Bo

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Article of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting after his/her appointment and any
Director appointed by the Board as an additional Director shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles of the Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation.
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Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Fong Wo, Felix and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy will retire as
Directors at the AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

Each of Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu, Mr. Huang Bo and Mr. Bau Siu Fung,
all being executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 13 July
2012 and may be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ prior written notice.

Each of Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all
being independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
13 July 12 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least three
months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Zeng Xiangyang and Mr. He Lijun, all being executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
commencing from 1 January 2013 and expiring on 12 July 2015 and may
be terminated by either party by giving at least three months’ written
notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Biographies of Directors and Other Senior Management

The biographical details of Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 17 to 27 of this annual report.

Directors Emoluments

Details of the Directors Emoluments are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Company.
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Interests of Directors in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year.

No contract of significance has been entered into during the Year between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholders or
any of its subsidiaries.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates had any interest
in a business which competes or likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

The Board has established a committee (the “Committee”) comprising
all the independent non-executive Directors which was delegated with
the authority to review the non-competition undertakings (the “Non-
competition Undertakings”) given by Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited (/&
FEEER AR A F]) (“Sheentai BVI”) and Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo")
in a deed of non-competition entered into by Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo
in favour of the Company, dated 28 June 2012. The Committee was not
aware of any non-compliance of the Non-competition Undertakings given
by Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
up to the date of this annual report.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in a state-managed retirement scheme operated
by the PRC government which covers the Group’s eligible employees in
the PRC and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employee in
Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2013 amounted to approximately
HK$378 million.
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Directors’ Interests or Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(a

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of the
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Long Position in the Shares and in the Shares

EERNKRD - HERORESHNERN

S A
HR

(a

F2013F12A31 8 ARAEERH&E=TH
ANBRAR RS EA AR E®E (T &R ESH
NMEAEED ([ FH RS G ]) B XVER) KB%
D ABERG RESF - BHEREES X
EIEPIEXVEE 7 RN ERME AN D R MBS
FrryiEss KR (BIEIRIEFRHF R PEKRIZE
SR B ESR AR 2 TS SUAR) » 3k
BIRIE B S R EAE (515 58 352 18 B e A sk A6 AT
BRECMAOERS AR SREETRANZ E
MARESETESF X FNRETNENGA
AR RB TR A BIAT

() REROZFERKRH

Number of Approximate
Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested interest
eV ¥ EREDL
EEnR B3 MHE EEROEE FE=
Mr. Guo Interest of a controlled corporation 300,000,000 72.29%
(Note 1)
ok Rt EEER (M)
Beneficial owner (Note 2) 4,900,000 1.18%
BEnkBA(Hit2)
Interest of Spouse (Notes 3 and 4) 1,500,000 0.36%
FoiBtEm (M3 4)
Xia Yu (“Ms. Xia") Interest of spouse (Note 5) 304,900,000 73.47%
BER(BxzL) Boisies (A/aE5)
Beneficial owner (Note 3) 1,500,000 0.36%
BEnikB A (H:3)
Zeng Xiangyang (“Mr. Zeng") Beneficial owner (Note 6) 500,000 0.12%
IRtz ) Emfa A Hite)
Interest of spouse (Note 7) 5,774,000 1.39%
Bt (Mt 7)
Huang Bo Beneficial owner (Note 8) 500,000 0.12%
=K BmER A (H528)
Bau Siu Fung Beneficial owner (Note 9) 500,000 0.12%
/g Emfa A H:E9)
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(i)

Notes:

Long Position in the Ordinary Shares of Associated (i)

Corporation
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RAEBEZEEBERD2HA

Number of
Name of associated share held/ Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity/Nature interested interest
Friss A
EEpE HEEE B 54 e EREROBE BEAESL
Mr. Guo Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 1 100%
WEAE BEmEBA
Ms. Xia (Note 5) Sheentai BVI Interest of spouse 1 100%

Bt (#it5)

o Bre s

Mr. Guo beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of Sheentai
BVI. Therefore, Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all
300,000,000 Shares held by Sheentai BVI for the purposes of the SFO.
Mr. Guo is the sole director of Sheentai BVI.

This represents the 500,000 Shares which may be allotted and issued
to Mr. Guo upon exercise of the options granted to him under the
pre-IPO share option scheme adopted by the Company on 22 June
2012 (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”), and the 4,400,000 Shares held
by Mr. Guo.

This represents the 500,000 Shares which may be allotted and issued
to Ms. Xia upon exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted to her,
and the 1,000,000 Shares held by Ms. Xia.

Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia. Accordingly, Mr. Guo is deemed, or
taken to be, interested in all Shares in which Ms. Xia is interested.

Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo. Accordingly, Ms. Xia is deemed, or
taken to be, interested in all Shares in which Mr. Guo is interested in
for the purpose of the SFO.

This represents the number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Zeng upon exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to him.

This represents the number of Shares held by Ms. Gao Yanjie, the
spouse of Mr. Zeng.

This represents the number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Huang Bo upon exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to him.

This represents the number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Bau Siu Fung upon exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to him.

26 4t 4 B 25 ¥ B Sheentai BVIF) 2 50 2 3 17
A Bt RIBEFHFRAEEA - L
A 148 & sk & VB Sheentai BVIF B I FT A
300,000,000 Fx f  HE B 2w - BEER
Sheentai BVIFyMff —E F

1t 500,000 A& A& 1 5 1R B A A B 2012 F 6 A
22 BEM 2 B AFREE R EARE 8 (TR
AFEERIRENRIERTE] ) M0 5 A 5 H A IE AR
ERTER I AERERERBETHRMHEE -
SBAE A A 4,400,000 BEAZD ©

1I£500,000 A& A% {5 15 M B 22 3% H ) B R AR
BERIE IR TR 1R AT RE M EL AR R AT HY
&HEE - Ezd4%4F 1,000,000 f&R& % °
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So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2013, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company as disclosed in paragraph (a) above) had interests or
short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who are,
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the

(b)

BEEAHA  R2013F 128318 LW FAL
(EX@BAEEZ ARG ESKESITERA
B BN 1 SABRERR 1D R A ARIRRE 5 & A5
T IEBIEXVERE 2 R E 3D BRIEXAR AR
AN IR ENERSAE - EESEE
BAEWAERANMEAER T EREETHE
MK 8 AR E RS FIREMFREERR AR
TE1E 10% 34 FERERS -

\

iy

\

Group:
The Company b /NE|
Number of Approximate
Shares held/ Percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested shareholding
Ec e 2]
L 54 EntE EREROBE REBD LA
Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 300,000,000 72.29%
BEnEBEA
Other Members of the Group AEENHMEKAE AT

Name of

Name of subsidiary shareholder

Capacity/Nature of interest

Percentage of
shareholding

o) NCIE=E RER A B HEEmtE REBEDLL
Jiangsu Shuntai Shenzhen Jinjia Beneficial owner 49%
TLERIEZR Color Printing EmEB A

Group Co., Ltd.

YR IR

R BRAE
Jiangsu Shuntai Qiao Lu Yu Interest of a controlled corporation 49%
TLERIEZR BET EEGEEER

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

Share Option Schemes

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) adopted on 22 June 2012, the Company had
granted options to subscribe for 10,000,000 Shares to employees,
directors, consultants and advisers of our Group.

Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:

Directors’ Report

EEEWmE

ESWBRONEFAIER

BREXTESERBD  HERD MMEFOERIOR
Bl —BAREEN  RAFEEEMER  ARF -
e NI NS AETEN ) PN A S RVA =S )
2 EARREFIERTRABRIEBRANE
BRI R B SAL AT EAE A B R kB S M

<
ZS o
I

IBRAESTE

(a) BEXRARBENBERETE
RIE2012F 6 A 22 BERANE X AREESAHEE
priERE ([ A EmERETE]) &
A #5288 10,000,000 A% A& 19 B BB AR HE 4%
FAEEEES - BF - HKHANRER -

RAFHREH - RIBERAMBEER B
I ARITENBIRERFITHIIMT

Number of
options Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding
granted on since date since date since date  as at the date
Name of grantee 22 June 2012 of grant of grant of grant  of this report
R2012F
6A22H BERBH HERAH BERAY REAFHAH
REARE BRBEREZE 27 G370 BEM e RATHE
Director EZE
Mr. Guo Pk 500,000 - - - 500,000
Ms. Xia Biat 500,000 - - - 500,000
Zeng Xiangyang B 500,000 - - - 500,000
Huang Bo 0 500,000 - - - 500,000
Bau Siu Fung g 500,000 - - - 500,000
Employees and advisers ESRER 7,500,000 672,500 - - 6,827,500
Total At 10,000,000 672,500 - - 9,327,500
Note: Fi%E

The subscription price for Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is HK$0.6029 per Share. Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall vested in 5 tranches in the proportion of 10%, 15%, 20%,
25% and 30% on 14 July 2013, 14 July 2014, 14 July 2015, 14 July
2016 and 14 July 2017, and shall expire on 13 July 2018, being the sixth
anniversary of the date of initial listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange.

A summary of the principal terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is set out in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

BRAAFABREFEREAE TRNINABEATR
0.602978 T  IRIEEH X AFREERBRET T LN
FEIEED AL A 10% ~ 15%  20% * 25% 5 30%
MBI B 20137 A14H ~ 201467 8148 ~
201547 A 148 201647 A14B X% 201747 A
14 BIRFAEZA - W7 201847 A 13 BRIEI (BIRR D
RE R ATE R LTy BERRERT B/ F) o

BIRAFIERE AT R 8] 2R R AR 2 8
RIBREIRM ST -
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(b) Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 22 June 2012. No options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme from the date of its adoption to the date of
this report. A summary of the principal terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme is set out in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed approximately 412
full-time staff members. The Directors and senior management receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in
kind and/or discretionary bonuses relating to our performance. The
Group also established the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme to incentivize the senior management and employees,
further details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Schemes” in this report. When reviewing and determining the
specific remuneration packages for the executive Directors and senior
management, the Company takes into consideration factors such as their
individual performance, qualification, experience and seniority, salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment elsewhere in the Group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration. The Group determines the staff’s
remuneration based on factors such as qualifications and work experience.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 28 to 37 of this annual report.

Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from the independent non-executive Directors
confirmations of independence (including an annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules) and considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent of the Company.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float during the
year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of this annual report as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

KPMG has acted as auditors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013. The Company has not changed its external auditors
during the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of this
report.

KPMG will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the

reappointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board of

Guo Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEATRE

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheen Tai
Holdings Group Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 54 to 131, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2014

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHENRE

%Vlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&fuﬁﬁﬁﬁmA%%ﬁ%%ﬁ
EREBBEER ZEZER - FMREZRFIURNZ
SRR 2 HUHT - BIERHE RN SRR M B AR A B
BRRFEEAHE Z%E%EZFLEW g EEHHEEZ%HE@
B ZEENE BEZA ‘T%%%%Eifféﬂ ZERAMB
BRAABZAEIES - ARFHEE Z%%kﬁ’@ﬂ
FEHE R B Z AERE %Uxﬁ ?éiﬁ%iﬁi c BEITIFIEE
HEEEMEASTBERESRELAEL G
=EEAE URFEBHAVBRRIERZIHA -

nh{ Dl:‘{

FHRE BEMESZERERERARIEE &
FrERBRARMH T ERE -

i
o

EERB PAW%&%B@NE%W%%%&W>
BEEHAVHMRMEAGRREEBEN2013F 12 A 31
az%%%&u&%%l&iaamigzﬁﬂ&ﬁ
ERE YEOBRBEFEBRRKIZEEREZAR

2o

ESRETEERH
HES D

HBEPIR
AT 1055
AT ARESHE

201453 H26 A

IERZEREBERAR —B—=FFi

53



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
REBEER

HZE2013F12 A31 BILFE (BT ABA)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2013 2012
k=g 2013 F 20124
$'000 $'000
FHET FAxT
Turnover =E 3 3 706,134 699,555
Cost of sales SHEK A (439,487) (445,033)
Gross profit EF 266,647 254,522
Other revenue and net income Hb g A F e 4 12,777 16,188
Distribution costs Pk 1D (15,392) (11,941)
Administrative expenses TR (67,943) (66,459)
Other operating expenses HAb A E RS (624) (844)
Profit from operations KRR 195,465 191,466
Finance costs RS RCAR 5(a) (19,645) (21,085)
Profit before taxation BATRER 5 175,820 170,381
Income tax TSR 6(a) (47,489) (46,453)
Profit for the year FREF 128,331 123,928
Attributable to: BUTN A FE4E :
Equity shareholders of the Company R BRI R 77,934 70,076
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M R 50,397 53,852
Profit for the year FREF 128,331 123,928
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted (HKD) EARREE(ET) 11 0.19 0.17
The notes on pages 61 to 131 form part of these financial statements. FIERE 61 £ 131 BN BHRKRMTRAVERER
HKE -
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

melEskEMEERER

BE2013F12 A31 BILFE (VBT RER)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2013 2012
s 2013 F 20124
$'000 $'000
FET FHT
Profit for the year FREF 128,331 123,928
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEEKE  FHE
net of tax
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AIREEF D EEEEMWIER ¢
Exchange differences on translation of BREMEARMIEER
financial information of subsidiaries RIRE X =58 10(a) 10,230 2,602
Available-for-sale Financial assets: AHHESRERE
net movement in the fair value reserve N ERBENFE 10(b) 3,505 =
Other comprehensive income FRHMEEK G
for the year 13,735 2,602
Total comprehensive income for the year FREZHEKHAEE 142,066 126,530
Attributable to: BTN AFE4E :
Equity shareholders of the Company RN BRI R 89,511 72,634
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M A 52,555 53,896
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWZEEE 142,066 126,530

The notes on pages 61 to 131 form part of these financial statements.

AERCEB D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma BB R R

R 2013412 A31 B UABTAEERL)

At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2013 2012
s 2013 F 20124
$'000 $'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets RBEE
Fixed assets BEEE
— Property, plant and equipment - - BEREE 12 318,069 335,287
— Interests in leasehold land held for own - RIBKEHEREAR
use under operating lease R E T A 12 44,830 44,442
Intangible assets B EE 544 169
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 14 23,702 =
Deferred tax assets FRIEFR IR E EE 22 4,242 2,317
391,387 382,215
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 71 15 102,578 105,579
Trade and other receivables B 5 FEWGRIA & E A FE W R IE 16 256,782 223,157
Restricted cash ZRHIR 19 49,704 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 17 61,179 79,180
470,243 407,916
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 e FRIE R A FE (I 5RIE 18 88,089 70,439
Bank loans RITER 19 271,091 277,504
Current taxation BIHATH IR 22 24,195 19,676
383,375 367,619
Net current assets REEEFHE 86,868 40,297
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBEE 478,255 422,512

56 SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RE AR R

2013412 A31 B (ABTTAEN)
At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2013 2012
s 2013 F 2012 4
$'000 $'000
FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITER 19 1,083 24,667
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEAE 22 4,303 2,272
Deferred government grants IR IE B #7 B) 639 1,040
6,025 27,979
NET ASSETS REE 472,230 394,533
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERR G
Share capital [N 23 4,150 4,150
Reserves 1] 23 378,339 329,355
Total equity attributable to equity ARARERRRIELBER
shareholders of the Company 382,489 333,505
Non-controlling interests ey 89,741 61,028
TOTAL EQUITY TSR 472,230 394,533

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March LB/ 73R E R 2014F 3 A 26 B EE S 2 AW
2014. AJEE o

) )
Guo Yumin ) BER )
) Directors ) EF
Bau Siu Fung ) B/ )
) )
The notes on pages 61 to 131 form part of these financial statements. HIENE 61 2 131 BRI BIRERM TR AU BEIHRER
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Statement of Financial Position
IR R &R

2013612 A31 B (LAETTREN)
At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2013 2012
s 2013 F 20124
$'000 $'000
FET FHET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RETB R R RIRE 13 84,955 84,955
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 14 23,702 =
108,657 84,955

Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE W R IA I B Ath FE U R IR 16 143,795 121,957
Cash and cash equivalents ReRALEMEIER 17 131 119
143,926 122,076
Current liabilities RBAE

Trade and other payables B 5 FE( 5RIA R E A FE (S 5RIR 18 709 92
Bank loans RITER 19 41,500 =
42,209 92
Net current assets REBEERE 101,717 121,984
Total assets less current liabilities wEERABAR 210,374 206,939
NET ASSETS REE 210,374 206,939

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#EE
Share capital &N 23 4,150 4,150
Reserves fEE 23 206,224 202,789
TOTAL EQUITY TR 210,374 206,939

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2201443 B 26 HEE E S BN A B -

2014.
) )
Guo Yumin ) BER )
) Directors ) E®E=E
Bau Siu Fung ) f e )
) )
The notes on pages 61 to 131 form part of these financial statements. FIERE 61 £ 131 BN BHRKRMTRAVERER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

BE2013F12 A31 BILFE (VBT RER)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FATERRRER
Capital/ Non-
share Share  Capital Statutory Exchange Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits ~ Subtotal interests equity

i &8/B%  ROEE EARE  EERE  ENRE  REE FERER AR
§'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §'000
TEr  TEr  TEr  TExr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TER  TEn

1 January 2012 RONE1A1R 69,318 -390 31405 78 135700 241176 149627 390,803
Changes in equity for 2012 HENNEREED
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 70076 70076 53852 123928
Other comprehensive income £ 2mEkE 10 = = = = 2,558 = 2,558 44 2,602
Total comprehensive income 2ANGEE - = = = 2,558 70,076 72,634 53896 126,530
Dividends to shareholders 6] 23(b) = = - - - (103987) (103987)  (88,643)  (192,630)
Appropriation to statutory reserve  ARE AT 23(d)il) - - - 3,263 - (3.263) - - -
Arising from reorganisation BARES 230 (66,318) - 653 - - - (3789) - (3,789)
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary A& RAHEERE
shares upon initial public LRRAGIETE
offering, net off issuing cost (MBEARA) 230 1150 123,696 = = = - 12484 - 124846
Equity-settled share-based DRABEE AR S
transactions 025 23(d)v) - - 389 - - - 389 - 389
Acquisition of non-controlling hE-FRBAA
interests HEIRER - - 223 - - - 222 (5385) (51620
At 31 December 2012 R20125128318 4150 123,69 69,054 34,668 3,341 985% 333,505 61,028 394,533
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RAREERRER
Fair Non-
Share Share  Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange value  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve reserve profits  Subtotal interests equity
It R ROEE EARE  iEBE  ENRE OVERRE  REEA Mt FEREE  4ER
§'000 §000 §000 §000 §/000 §/000 §/000 §000 §000 §000
Tér  fTEr  TEr TR TR TEr  TEr T TR TiEn
1 January 2013 HUBE1A1A 4150 13696 6904 34668 3341 - B WS 68 30453
Changes in equity for 2013 BEZNBEEERY
Profit for the year Emat] - - - - - - T4 T4 50397 128331
Other comprehensive income Efb2ENG 10 - - - - 8072 3,505 -1 2158 1373
Total comprehensive income FEhREE - - - - 8012 3505 77934 89511 52555 142,066
Dividends to shareholders ke 23(b) - - - - - - (415000 (415000  (27548)  (69,049)
Appropriation to statutory reserve ARELTRE 23(a)i) - - - 261 - - 6n) 5 5 =
Capitalinjection from non-conroling FERERRRTE
interests shareholders - - - - - - - - 3706 3706
Equity-settled share-based WRAEENRDZH
transactons HR% () - - CIE] - - - - CTE] - 973
At 31 December 2013 RABENANA 4150 123,69 10,027 37,340 11413 3,505 132358 382489 89,741 412,30
The notes on pages 61 to 131 form part of these financial statements. FIERZE 612131 BN BHRERMTRAV B RER
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

HZE2013F12 A31 BILFE (BT ASB)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2013 2012
s 2013 £ 2012 %
$'000 $'000
FHET FHT
Operating activities ReFEH
Cash generated from operations KEMBES 17(b) 224,678 201,290
Income taxes paid ERPSE 22(a) (43,711) (49,349)
Net cash generated from operating activities &% ;EB TSR & FHE 180,967 151,941
Investing activities RETEE
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets and BEETEEMBTEE
intangible assets HIFRIA (8,224) (25,975)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEREEEMSHIE 80 116
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEE
financial assets EREENNIEA (20,197) =
Interest received [=ALEPS) 1,123 340
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Y g FEIE R i o = (51,620)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFMARS T (27,218) (77,139)
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from borrowings BRETEF0E 281,924 221,396
Repayment of borrowings EEER (319,602) (220,166)
Increase in restricted cash SR EITR N (49,704) =
Interest paid BAFIE (19,645) (21,085)
Dividends paid AR R (69,048) (163,618)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests ~ JF3EARE AL T E
shareholder 3,706 -
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares upon 7 B X AR EERF 31T E B
initial public offering, net off issuing cost FR{SRUE S 58 (R EBEITRA) - 124,846
Net cash used in financing activities REITHMARSFE (172,369) (58,627)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash HeREELEEER
equivalents CRL2) /s (18,620) 16,175
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January BM1A1ENRE
RREEEER 79,180 63,013
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgHTE 619 (8)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R 12A31HHEE
RREZEIER 17(a) 61,179 79,180

The notes on pages 61 to 131 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 February 2012 and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under
Companies law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries
hereinafter are collectively referred to as the “Group”. The Group is
principally engaged in manufacturing and supply of cigarette paper
boxes, cigarette and other marketing films. The Company’s shares
were listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 13 July
2012.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

B SRR
(BB BEHEREIN - LABTTAENA)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

— R

IEREREEBR AR ARA])R20124F
2R24BIRBEASEHESEMIE22EAF]E(1961
FEIFEN - e REF]) ER S ST
B A—REHREERAR - KRR RENE
NAGHE [ AEE] - AEEXERENRER
EHE BEREMTISAAER - AQF
B 2012F 7 B 13 BEMZFT LT ©

BEASHEE
(a) EHREBH

REABHRERC RIBMAERNCEER
BERDRE  ZEAARERELES
e A SEMNMAERENKE RSB
FEA) (BEGFHEADRRE - &
B ARG RRIAREE R BEHIH R
E o APMTEMRIE TR B A XD E
F EMRAERBTESRE - NEBERA
MBEREABRBEHNTX -

BAGA DG R/MAE TR REES
(ERPBMEER) - ZFEATAARE
B R AR R E BT 5 B B R A AT
HRFERA - RASFH PR AT
- AR ERER DR AEEARN
EHNMEHSHBREBHNEHE RN
A BImED - WHERNHEE2() °

(b) EINEERGEMBMERNZS]

HE2013F12 831 B IEFENGA Y

K8 -

IERZEREBERAR —B—=FFi
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

(B=EEHI -

AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"), rounded to the nearest thousand. The measurement
basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis except financial instruments classified
as available-for-sale are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies note 2(e).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 27.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group and the Company’s
financial statements:

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

. HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

. HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9]

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

° HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

o Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of other new or amended HKFRSs
are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements - Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions
are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit
or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive income
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in these financial statements has been modified
accordingly. In addition, the Group and the Company has
chosen to use the new title “statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income” as introduced by the
amendments in these financial statements.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating to the
preparation of consolidated financial statements and SIC 12
Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It introduces a single
control model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has power
over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its
power to affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to determining
whether it has control over an investee. The adoption does
not change any of the control conclusions reached by the
Group in respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1
January 2013.

2 EXREHEE

(9]

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

(B=EEHI -

AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9]

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures required by
HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than those previously
required by the respective standards. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has
provided those disclosures in note 13.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS
13 also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair
value measurements for both financial instruments and non-
financial instruments. To the extent that the requirements
are applicable to the Group, the Group has provided those
disclosures in note 24. The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not
have any material impact on the fair value measurements of
the Group's assets and liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures - Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those
new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32,
Financial instruments: Presentation and those that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments and
transactions, irrespective of whether the financial instruments
are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact
on these financial statements because the Group has not
offset financial instruments, nor has it entered into master
netting arrangement or similar agreement which is subject to
the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the periods presented.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transaction, are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance
with notes 2(m) or (n) depending on the nature of the liability.
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AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at lost less impairment losses (see
note 2(j)).

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in
note 2(s)iii) and (iv).

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

2

EX

(d)

(e)

25T BeR (8

MR D B R IR R R R ()
AEER—RMEARNEREES) - 1
BoIBERREGIRE - AR I A
WiR 2 SR & a1 5 ROF B S
SRERE - URBIBRNEREE) -
TERBHE MERWELER -

EASERAES — B RIAEIE
B - EARRIISHENZHBARN 2
i ENREIBEBENRER PR
o MEKIEHIE R HIRENZAHB A
AR RE A T EER - Mt S8R
BRSEREBEENRFE -

RARBNFBRNES - RIER R
RE T RERRRERR(RHEE2()) -

HitEBRRAFSHRE
REBMARRRBBEELRBEAESRE
(RHTB AR RIRERSN) BRI -

BRI R ARETE VISR HERR B TS R IR AN 1R
ENRTFEEARZERIR  KR&ZA
FEEARAGERM(EAZEERBER
BABRTSHNEE) Er EfhaEt - &
8 BURERAAFEAIRHER)
IRFIE - BRIFE T X ZEFIHR - AR
RRIERZHA o« BLREERIZABD
AT AN

REEERSNRESBARPEE - £
ARG R BRANELR B RTHER
AEEEESEBSHREFAERTF
B AtEENEAIRESERSERRE
RRER o R a T R A F RS SEERT
BREELRERDNBELAME - A
P B 3 A1) B 2 4 BR B R 2(s)(Gii) 0 (iv) T8
I H) R AR ERR,



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses.

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(j)). Dividend income from
equity securities and interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out in
notes 2(s)(iii) and (iv), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost of debt
securities are also recognised in profit or loss. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they were measured at fair value and
changes therein, other than foreign currency differences on
available-for-sale debt instruments which were included in
profit or loss and impairment losses, were recognised in other
comprehensive income and presented within equity in the
fair value reserve. When an investment was derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive income was
transferred to profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 1(j)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the group commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.
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PR ERAR BT RE

(B=EEHI -

AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(j)-

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(u)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

= Buildings 20 years

= Plant and machinery 10 — 20 years

- Office equipment and 3 -5 years
other fixed assets

- Motor vehicles 4 -5 years

- Leasehold land held for own use 50 years

under operating lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and machinery and equipment
under installation and testing. Construction in progress is
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j)). The cost includes cost of
construction, cost of purchased plant and equipment and
other direct costs plus borrowing costs which include interest
charges and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings used to finance these projects during the
construction period, to the extent that these are regarded as
an adjustment to borrowing costs (see note 2(u)).

Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time
as the assets are completed and substantially ready for their
intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(j)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

()

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

(j)) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in financial instruments.

Investments in financial instrument that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events.

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0]} Impairment of assets (continued)

()

Impairment of investments in financial instruments
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

- For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0]} Impairment of assets (continued)

()

Impairment of investments in financial instruments
(continued)

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0]} Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- prepaid interest in leasehold land classified as
being held under operating lease;

- intangible assets; and

- Investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Inventories

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

(U]

(m)

(n)

(o)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(j)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Employee benefits

()

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits and contribution to
defined contributions retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of
these benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that s,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Group or Company has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or Company intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of good’s

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue recognition (continued)
(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

(i) Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(v)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(t) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
outside mainland China is Hong Kong dollars and the
functional currency of the subsidiaries in mainland China is
Renminbi. The results of operations with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(@  has control or joint control over the Group;
(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(@  The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(b)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(c)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(d)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(e)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(g0 A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 EXRSFEEGE

(w)

S HEE
N L LT
A & H T I AR B T
EBABRELHAEESBLB RS
BB TR RS R R AR O
BRI ES -

AU BHREMS @ ERIERNELLEDFAL
TTFREE - BRIEZEN BAGRLULHE
Bt ARRERKRBLEE - £ERRF
HE - FPEMNZER - AUDHEMRNK
RERHA T REERENEE T EE
W RIRER - HENSEZARD ERE
R WIHEREANKED T AT TINE
o .

3 EXERIIWRE

Turnover (a) #%#=E
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing AEENEZEBRFENRMHTER
and supply of cigarette paper boxes, cigarette and other 8 BERAMTISANEE -
marketing films.
Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold less returns, EEATEEREEEERRE - M
discounts and value added taxes and other sales taxes. The EETRHMEET - RAFEENEE
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in BHEANSEZWABROSENT
turnover during the year is as follows:
2013 2012
2013 F 2012 %
$'000 % $'000 %
FHET % FHET %
Manufacturing and sales of EEEEEE
cigarette-related packaging BEME
materials
— Cigarette paper boxes - BERE 289,565 41.0 286,834 41.0
— Anti-counterfeiting films - P ER 72,281 10.2 74,783 10.7
— Other cigarette films - b BEEE 146,355 20.7 148,606 21.2
Sub-total NEt 508,201 71.9 510,223 72.9
Trading of imported films HEOEERE S 78,267 11.1 62,026 8.9
Manufacturing and sales of EEHIEEIEER
non-cigarette-related BEEM B
packaging materials 119,666 17.0 127,306 18.2
Total A&t 706,134 100.0 699,555 100.0
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Turnover (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there were 2 (2012:
2) customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenues. Revenues from sales of cigarette-
related packaging materials to these customers, including
sales to entities which are known to the Group to be
under common control with these customers (i.e. the sales
to different customers are viewed as a single customer if
the relevant sales were made to various customers under
common control), amounted to approximately $507,816,000,
and $531,301,000 for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2013 respectively. Details of concentrations of credit risk
arising from these customers are set out in note 24(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed as below:

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following two
reportable segments.

o Cigarette-related packaging materials: this segment
sales and manufactures cigarette packages and
cigarette packaging films; and

o Non-cigarette-related packaging materials: this
segment sales and manufactures non-cigarette-related
packaging materials (e.g. films for packing straws,
food, cassettes and stationery tapes).

) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets. Segment liabilities include trade
creditors, accruals and bills payable attributable to the
manufacturing and sales activities of the individual
segments and bank borrowings managed directly by
the segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 FERDHFEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) DEHER (H)

()  Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () DEEE BEERAE(E)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable WA R FZ 28R 0] Bk D S TS i
segments with reference to sales generated by those ERRZED EEERNFZ %
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments ENBELMEETERBHMESL
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or ZEMFAS - AR EEZFZNE -
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments HZE2013F 20129128311
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive IFFEERETAEBRESEREIN
management for the purposes of resource allocation RERBLE IR KT 9D SRIAI
and assessment of segment performance for the years AR E ] R 8 &R Y140
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is set out below. e
Cigarette related Non-cigarette related
packaging materials packaging materials Total
EERRGEMNR FELEHBEENN Eh
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
013F  2012F 013%F  2012F 013%  2012F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TER FAL TER TAL T FEL
Revenue from external customers  RESMFZE P HER 586,468 572,249 119,666 127,306 706,134 699,555
Reportable segment revenue LRGN 586,468 572,249 119,666 127,306 706,134 699,555
Reportable segment gross profit T H KA HEF 254,080 238,195 12,567 16,327 266,647 254,522
Reportable segment profit R BHART
before taxation 173,990 167,406 1,830 2,975 175,820 170,381
Interest income from bank deposits  $&7777 547 84z 1,084 294 39 46 1,123 340
Interest expense FERES 15,595 15,047 4,050 6,038 19,645 21,085
Depreciation and amortisation ERTEREH
for the year 25,745 23,976 7,393 7,940 33,138 31,916
Reportable segment assets ARHIHEE 684,691 590,531 175510 196,887 860,201 787,418
Additions to non-current segment  EFRE H)
assets during the year FERBHFEE 5,067 24,913 279 2,801 5,346 27,714
Reportable segment liabilities ~ ATERHABEE 284,409 263,070 104,129 132,330 388,538 395,400
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BRI EE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 #XHERpIFEE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) PRI (E)

(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment assets and (i) AR BRI EER B EREAR
liabilities
2013 2012
2013 5 20124
$'000 $'000
FET FET
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AR EEE 860,201 787,418
Deferred tax assets FRERTEE E 1,429 441
Other receivables HAb U GRIA - 2,272
Consolidated total assets REEERE 861,630 790,131
Liabilities afE&
Reportable segment liabilities AIRRO I EE 388,538 395,400
Current taxation BNEARR IR 473 =
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIESE 389 198
Consolidated total liabilities meEaEesE 389,400 395,598

(i) Geographic information (i) HHFEER
No geographic information is shown as the turnover ARASENEEMEEEE R G
and profit from operations of the Group are derived FRBERHBINER - I ER
from its activities in the PRC. TRHIIEE R o
4  OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 4 HsW AR FUWzE
(a) Other revenue (a) HAA
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
$'000 $'000
FTHET FHT
Interest income LBz 1,123 340
Government grants AT B 766 381
1,889 721
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OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME (CONTINUED) 4

(b) Other net income

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HAWA K3 W ()
(b) EAFlA

2013 2012

2013 F 20124

$'000 $'000

FET FET

Net foreign exchange gain b 5 W 2 7 28 420 553
Sales of scrap materials SHERER 10,239 11,859
Sales of raw materials SHERME _ 7]
Others Hitp 229 3,033
10,888 15,467

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(9, ]

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

B AT R

Bk GEA) AT ERRSHAOBANEF) :

2013 2012
20135 20124
$'000 $'000
FHET FHT
(a) Finance costs: (a) BIFERA
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ARAFANBEEER
repayable within five years RIERT TR FILE 19,645 21,085
(b) Staff costs: (b) EIA:
Contributions to defined contributions FE M RGRRET SRR
retirement plan 3,713 3,460
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses VARRZA 4 B LAt A E BT 5K
(note 21) (Mf3E21) 973 398
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREAMETR 50,400 43,381
55,086 47,239
() Other items: (0 H#EAR :
Amortisation of intangible assets BiHmpEE 72 52
Auditors’ remuneration % EREM & 2,350 2,906
Cost of inventories # (note 14(b)) TFERA* (FIFE 14(b)) 439,487 445,033
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets ElE & EE R 33,066 31,864
Impairment losses AIEEE
— Trade and other receivables - B 5 FEWGRIE K H M FEIRGRIR 728 -
Net foreign exchange gain b 3 W s F 2R (420) (553)
Operating lease charges KERERE 4141 1,254
Net loss on sale of fixed assets HEBREEENEEFE 378 844

# Cost of inventories includes $50,842,000 (2012: $46,031,000)
relating to staff costs, operating lease charges depreciation
and amortisation expenses, which amounts are also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in
note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

& GFEXRABREHEIRA ££H
EER TEREHEAIBEALR
50,842,000 7T (2012 4F : 46,031,000
7))+ LA L& REINET A _E3CEk bR 5(b) BE
ERZIERB U RENEEASER
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Rup R E S
(B =AEHEAS

AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 6 #HREBEmXRANAEH
OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) HZEBEERAPHFERR:
represents:
2013 2012
2013 F 2012 4
$'000 $'000
FET FHET
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax BT IE - BB FIEB
Provision for the year FREE 3,666 6,275
Current tax - PRC income tax BNERTIE - P EFTBHE
Provision for the year FEE 43,966 43,822
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of iy ERRELE REE
temporary differences (143) (3,644)
47,489 46,453

—
=

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 is calculated
at 16.5%. The payments of dividends by the Group
companies incorporated in Hong Kong are not subject
to withholding tax.

On 16 March, 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the
Tenth National People’s Congress passed the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the PRC (“New Tax Law"”) which
became effective on 1 January 2008 and the PRC's
statutory Corporate Income Tax rate is 25%.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation
rules, dividends receivable by non-PRC-resident
corporate investors from PRC-resident enterprises are
subject to withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by
tax treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since
1 January 2008. Under the tax arrangement between
the Mainland of China and Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and the relevant regulations,
a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the
“beneficial owner” and holds a 25% equity interest
or more of a PRC enterprise is entitled to a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5%. The withholding tax rate
applicable to the Group is 5%.
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(iii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B ERRMIEE
(BB BEREN - BT AERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 6 #HARAaBEZRAWHEH (&)
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) BIEMXEREABEHENSHEANN
profit at applicable tax rates: R
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
$'000 $'000
FHET FHT
Profit before taxation i B A 175,820 170,381
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RRAR AR R RN ETE
calculated at the rates applicable to BOR AL A O HE E A 1E
profits in the jurisdictions concerned 42,621 40,340
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses DA A IR & 2,865 1,144
PRC dividends withholding tax AR B TR AR 2,003 4,969
Actual tax expense ERBIEFY 47,489 46,453
7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 ES#E
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the RIEEBRUEFIE 161 EHENESHE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: N
Salaries,

allowances Contributions

and other to retirement Share-based

Directors’ benefits benefits  Discretionary payments 2013

Name of directors BEfE fees in kind schemes bonuses Sub-Total (note) Total
¥e 28 DYv)

k&t BHER REBMR 20135

EShe BENEA HE e Hisfa gt (k) ait

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

FiEn TR FTiEx TiEx TiEx TiEx TiEx

Executive directors HITEE

Guo Yumin BER - 554 15 - 569 48 617
Xia Yu Bf - 404 - - 404 48 452
Zeng Xiangyang L5 = 805 = = 805 48 853
He Lijun g - 610 82 313 1,005 - 1,005
Huang Bo B - 602 - - 602 48 650
Bau Siu Fung &g - 1,002 15 - 1,017 48 1,065

Independent non-executive BUFHTEE

directors
Lo Wa Kei EEE 200 - - - 200 - 200
Fong Wo Ll 200 - - - 200 = 200
Fan Qing pel 200 - - - 200 = 200
Total & 600 3,977 112 313 5,002 240 5,242
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 7 EEME (E)

Salaries,
allowances  Contributions

and other to retirement Share-based
Directors' benefits benefits  Discretionary payments 2012
Name of directors e fees in kind schemes bonuses Sub-Total (note) Total
F =i SARR AR
RE RARAER REBNT 012
B2 ENEH HE[5 2 it (=) a3
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

TERL TR TR T T T TEL

Executive directors HTEE
Guo Yumin PER = 605 22 22 649 19 668
Xia Yu BB = 187 1 10 198 19 217
Huang Bo £H - 373 - 1 374 19 383
Bau Siu Fung e - 1,000 14 - 1,014 19 1,033
Independent non-executive BUHHEE

directors
Lo Wa Kei EER 9 = = = 9% - 9%
Fong Wo L 94 - - - 94 = 94
Fan Qing BB 9% = = = 9% = 94
Total Ch 282 2,165 37 3 2,517 76 2,593
Note: liE=®
These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors ZENFIERBARRABRES SR TESHOMEE
under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share options MRiEfB(E - RSB B ETIRIEIEE 2(0)ii) FTE
is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based AEBEAUARND AERNZIOR SO S EORE
payment transactions as set out in note 2(p)(ii) and, in accordance with that 2 MBHRZER - AEEEREMRERBEFRER
policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years e T BB R A #R0% W ifn R 50 & S AE A9 38
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting. o
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms ZEBEYRANNFE (REXEERENEZK
and number of options granted, are disclosed in note 21. HREEB) IRME21 55 -
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2012:
three) are directors, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER AR M EE
(BB BEREN - BT AERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SHMA L
hEEaFMALTFEA4Z(Q012F :358) A
BF HWERWE7HE - 8T A L85
LU

2013 2012

2013 F 20124

$'000 $'000

FET FET

Salaries and other emoluments T S E R 624 727
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes RIREFIFTBI R 11 120
Discretionary bonuses BEIEAL = 111
635 958

Number of senior management SEAREIEYN - 1 2

The above individuals are within the following band:

Nil to $1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T

VALE A e B F LA T S8

2013 2012

2013 20124
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AH

1 2
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9  PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY 9 ARAFERBRREMLER
SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY
Period from
24 February
(date of
incorporation)
to

31 December

2013 2012
20124
2 A24H
G aiiava=pi))
ZE2012%F
20135 12 A31 BEIE
$'000 $'000
THT FT
Amount of consolidated profit attributable ESIAARR BB R 5= AR = AR
to equity shareholders dealt with FE(EARE MmN B
in the Company’s financial statements (70) (2,862)
Final dividends from subsidiaries attributable REMB AR E—BREE &R
to the profits of the previous financial year, W AFEZAEMZ R RAEIE
approved and paid during the year 41,500 -
Company’s profit for the year (note 23(a)) RARAREE A (FHFE23(a)) 41,430 (2,862)
Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of the B REMARRERRROKREFBEHINN
Company are set out in note 23(b) MI5E 23(b) °
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10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 HftZmEsE
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) H2EKBERAERBDWAERERBELE

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ERRMI T
BASN - LA T ARENL)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Br=EHE

comprehensive income

2013 2012
2013% 20125
Tax Tax
Before-tax  (expense)/  Net-of-tax  Before-tax (expense)/  Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
BiE A
Baef (X)) /FE  HESE  BosE () /AE BesE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TEx TEn T AT AL FHL
Exchange differences on IMEREES
translation of:
— financial statements of - B
subsidiaries BBER 10,230 - 10,230 2,602 - 2,602
Available-for-sale financial assets: RN ESREE
net movement in fair value ATERE
reserve MFEE 3,505 - 3,505 = = =
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 13,735 - 13,735 2,602 = 2,602
Components of other comprehensive income, including (b) Htt2EWRRERTS BREEHSER
reclassification adjustments B
2013 2012
2013 & 20124
$'000 $'000
FET FA&T
Available-for-sale financial assets: AL ESREE -
Changes in fair value recognised RERR N TEZE)
during the year 3,505 -
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PR ERAR BT RE

(Br=AEHAN

AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BRELEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year REZ20B3FFELEHERERR
ended 2013 is based on the consolidated profit attributable FITHRBEAR N B R RELERE R
to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$77,934,000 F77,934,000/&7T (20124 : 70,076,000
(2012: HK$70,076,000) and weighted average number of BIL) REARAREE2013FFE |k
415,000,000 shares (2012: 415,000,000 shares) in issue & % 17415,000,000f% A& 15 (2012 4F :
during the year. 415,000,000 f& B (D W M T BETE -
AR FE 22 s R SR Z SR BV E 2013
F1RANBIEFE-EFE) -
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREEEF
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based BREERTNFTERENANA R LB
on the consolidated profit attributable to ordinary [i% 3R & {1k #5 & J& F1) 77,934,000 78 TT Bk LA
equity shareholders of the Company of HK$77,934,000 BIERIBEAR DB R AFEERIERE
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary 2(MFE21) RO ZHEBIELARENY
shares of 417,155,000 shares after adjusting for the BAR INHEF980417,155,000 (% 5HE - 1
effects of deemed issue of shares under the Company’s HZE2012F 12 A31 B - W BB EEE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (note 21). There were no TR -
dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year ended 31
December 2012.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) ZERWMETOE (8E)
2013 2012
2013 F 20126
$'000 $'000
FHET FAxT
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares B AR A N 5 8 415,000 415,000
Effect of deemed issue of shares under BERIBAR R R AR &
the Company’s share option scheme BITRIDEE
(note 21) (MtEE21) 2,155 =
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted) TEAgm & () 417,155 415,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 FIXED ASSETS 12 EEEE

Interests in

leasehold

[and held

Office for own

equipment Use under

Pantand  and other Motor  Construction operating

Buildings ~ machinery  fixed assets vehicles — in progress Sub-total lease Total

iselld

N HEHEER

RERE MEELH

BT HERRE  HEAE g RRIR st Wik aif
§000 $000 §000 $000 §000 §000 $000 §000
ThT thr  TER TAT TAL TAT TRt TR

Cost: A
At 1 January 2012 R012%1518 103,825 253,001 11,049 6,454 31238 405,567 48,086 453,653
Exchange adjustments ERBE (13) (31) (1) (1) 4 (50) (6) (56)
Additions B 6,770 2012 1,956 1,138 15,838 2,14 - 2,14
Disposals LE (1,690) (6,013) = = - (7,703) = (7,703)
Transfer from construction BEETEEY

in progress 40,778 3,630 - - (44.408) - - -
At 31 December 2012 R2012£128318 149,670 252,599 13,004 7,591 2,664 425528 43,080 473,608
Accumulated depreciation ZTERES

and amortisation:
At 1 January 2012 R012E1A1R (14,424) (42,664) (4,631) (3,058) - (64,777) (2,666) (67,443)
Exchange adjustments EHAE 2 6 - - - 8 = 8
Charge for the year Rk 107 (19629) (2,800) (1,399) - (30,89) (972) (31,864)
Written back on disposals RHEREE 308 5,112 - - - 5420 = 5420
At 31 December 2012 R12E128318 (21,186) (57,17) (1431) (4453) - (90,241) (3638) (93,879)
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2012 R012E12A318 128,484 195,428 5573 3,138 2,664 335,287 44,447 379,729
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B SRR EE

(BZBIEBIN - WETRER)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 12 BEEEE (&)
Interests in
leasehold
[and held
Office for own
equipment use under
Plantand  and other Motor  Construction operating
Buildings  machinery ~fixed assets vehicles inprogress  Sub-total lease Total
REgE
BAZ BEREER
B )i

BF HKEREE  BREE nE  HRIE At fER fit
§'000 §000 §'000 §000 §'000 §000 §000 §'000
TEn Tin T TiEn T TEn T TEn

Cost: A
At 1January 2013 R2013%1 718 149,670 252,599 13,004 1591 2,664 425,528 48,080 473,608
Exchange adjustments By 4,664 7848 33 5 B BB 150 14679
Additions AE 1,295 1,035 1,283 1,294 5 4912 - 4912
Disposals HE (216) (53) (358) (229) = (856) = (856)
Transfer from construction AERIRER

in progress 1,888 728 91 - (2,707) - - -
At 31 December 2013 R2013E12A318 157,301 262,157 14,403 8,893 5 442,759 49,584 492,343
Accumulated depreciation ZMERES

and amortisation:
At 1January 2013 R2013E1A18 (21,186) (57,171) (7.431) (4,453) - (90,241) (3,638) (93,879)
Exchange adjustments B8 (658) (1,749) (22) (139) - (.770) (128) (2.89)
Charge for the year Eni (1418)  (20561) (2,594) (1,505) - (32,078) (988)  (33,066)
Written back on disposals REEREE 56 4 9% 203 - 399 - 399
At 31 December 2013 R2013E12A318 (29,206) (79,434) (10,156) (5,894) - (124,690) (4,754) (129,444)
Net ook value: REFE
At 31 December 2013 R2013E12A318 128,095 182,723 4,247 2,999 5 318,069 44,830 362,899
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12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

13

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BEEEE (&)

The analysis of net book value of properties is as (a) YEEEFEIHUT :
follows:
2013 2012
2013 2012 %
$'000 $'000
FTHET FT
Medium-term leases in the PRC R ER A EEE 172,925 172,926
Representing: B :
Buildings BT 128,095 128,484
Interests in leasehold land held for R EREREAR
own use under operating lease KIFH & AR R 44,830 44,442
172,925 172,926
Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating BB ERERIEAANHEE L HER
lease represent land located in the PRC. As at 31 December AR EH T H o R20135 12 A 31
2013, the remaining period of the land use rights ranged H - T AENSR TER T F45548
from 45 to 48 years. FERE o
Buildings, plant and machinery and interests in (b) ARBITHEEFETF  BERBBERRE

leasehold land held for own use under operating lease
pledged for banking facilities

As at 31 December 2013, motor vehicles, buildings, plant and
machinery and interests in leasehold land held for own use
under operating lease with net book value of $280,551,000
(2012: $289,802,000) are pledged as security against bank
loans of certain subsidiaries (see note 19).

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted investment, at cost

FELETRIIRE (ARKAET)

KEHERFARANEE L S

MR2013F128318: @ F B A
280,551,000 7 (2012 4F : 289,802,000
JO)R)TE - EF - BRE R RIRERL
EHEREEANHEE T A ESD T
LAMEARE THEBARMIRITERAERSR
(RMFE19) °

13 RKBRRNERE

Company
ENE|
2013 2012
20135 20124
$'000 $'000
THET TET
84,955 84,955
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The

class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Name of company

NAER

Ling Xian Fei Yu Import and
Export (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“XFY)

FERTELD (R) BRAT
(Note 1) and (Note 2)

Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science
Technology Co,, Ltd. (*155C")
IELRENBARAR
(Note 1) and (Note 3)

Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging &
Printing Science Technology
Co,, Ltd. ("15ST")

IHERRRDRINEARAR
(Note 1) and (Note 3)

Qingdao Ener Packaging
Technology Co,, Lid. (“QD Ener”)
(EREZORRRBRAR)
(Note 1) and (Note 2)

Jiangsu Kingtai Packaging
Technology Co. Ltd. (“JSKT")
(TEEFREMEERAA)
(Note 1) and (Note 3)

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Date and

place of

incorporation/

establishment

HREL/

RuAH

Ritd

FARTELOGRI) 10 September 2007/
BRAT The PRC
(TLXFY])(Bi3E1) 2007597108/
R(KiE2) hE
T RENRERAR 6 March 2002/
([15SCJ) (B 1) The PRC
R (Hiz3) 00243768/
i

THIEZBERRE 20 December 2008/
BRAR(T)SST]) The PRC
() R(WEE3)  2008%128208/
i

FERZOENHARAT 27 June 2007/
(TQD Ener]) (Ri3E 1) The PRC
R (f3t2) 2007568278/
i

THSREERHARAE 11 January 2013/
(s 1) R (W323) The PRC
W3E1ANB/

;p

Place of
operation
and business

LES
L0

The PRC
E

The PRC
T

The PRC
E

The PRC
B8

The PRC
B8

13 RKBRRNERE ()

THEREEEREARAEEXE

BEXABRE

BB ARFE - REFEBIN - A ZK

IR BB o

Proportion of ownership interest

ity i

Issued Group's
and paid effective ~ Held by the Held by a Principal
up capital interest Company subsidiary activities

BEfR AEEN
HEER ERER ArRERE AREARKE IERH
HKD 100% - 100% Trading of
23,180,000 cigarette films
usb 100% - 100% Printing of
2,176,400 (Note 4) cigarette films
N (Rzt4) EEBEDR
usb 51% - 51% Printing of
5,500,000 cigarette packages
N BEBEDR
usb 100% - 100%  Manufacturing
12,000,000 (Note 5) of cigarette
3 (RzEs) and BOPP films
BERBOPPEE
ik
RVB 70% - 70%  Manufacturing
7,000,000 and trading of
N aluminum foil
BERNES
Rght
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Date and
place of Place of
incorporation/ operation

Name of company establishment  and business

AV
RIAH EXR

ARER Rt E3 8

Century Leader Asia Limited FREMERAR(CAL)  2Api 2007/ HongKong
("CLAL") Hong Kong &%
EATHARAA W0754R28/

Sheen China Group Holdings Inc. JEZLEZRERAT 27 November 2008/ HongKong
("SCGHI") (ISCGHI) British Virgin Islands &k
(EEEEARARAR) ("Bv)

0085118278/
ARRLES
([£BR%ES))

Sheen China Group Holdings JEESEIERARAT  5September2008/  Hong Kong
Limited (“SCGHL") (ISCGHL]) Hong Kong B
(EESEARERAR) 200859A58/

Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited ~ |B%(E75) AR AR 20 August 1997/ Hong Kong
("HKSC") (THKSC)) Hong Kong B
(IB2(B%)BRAR) 197684208/

Note 1: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The

official names of these entities are in Chinese.

Note 2: These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in PRC.

Note 3: These entities are equity joint ventures in PRC.

Note 4: For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group owned

68.15% equity interest of JSSC. On 28 August 2012, the Group
purchased the remaining 31.85% equity interest of JSSC from a
third party. Since then, JSSC became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.

Note 5: For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group owned

70% equity interest of QD Ener. On 13 March 2012, the Group
purchased the remaining 30% equity interest of QD Ener from
a third party. Since then, QD Ener became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 RHBLENKRE (F)

Proportion of ownership interest

it £3:0d0]

Issued Group's
and paid effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
up capital interest Company subsidiary activities

BEfR AREN
HEER EREE ArRERE ARRARKE IEEH
HKD 100% - 100% Investment
10,000 holding
i RER
UsD 100% 100% = Investment
10 holding
xT REER
HKD 100% - 100% Trading of
1 cigarette films
HKD 100% - 100% Trading of
12,600,000 cigarette films

MizE1: AXAWREBLBEHRSE - ZZEEDN

BHBTBUAR SRR -
MizE2 : ZEERATERINELE-
MizE3: ZEERATHEERE-
MizE4: HE2011E12A31BLEE  AEBEE
B ISSCH)68.15% ik # » 72201248 A28
B AEERE=FWIEISSCEHT 31.85%
BORRAE - BILIATE - ISSCRRAAREEN 2
BHBAR -
WrES: BE2011E12A31BLEE - NEEH
B QD Ener#)70% i # o P 201243 A
138 ZREBRE=ZHWEQD Enerip T
30% HIRSHE ° BILLATR © QD Enerfk A%
Er2EMBAR -

IERZEREBERAR —B—ZFFi
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The following table lists out the information relating to JSST and
JSKT, the subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-
controlling interest (NCI). The summarised financial information

13 RHBARINKRE (&)
TREFNERISST R ISKTE @RI E R o 52 A B2
AEBHEEAEREZNHBAT - T&
2T BERBEAEEANRFIBEERETT

presented below represents the amounts before any inter-company MR RO 20EE o
elimination.
JSST JSKT

2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 2012 % 2013 F 2012 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET FAxT
NCI percentage RSN B DL 49% 49% 30% =
Current assets mEEE 192,073 131,481 21,395 -
Non-current assets ERBEE 148,185 154,761 15 =
Current liabilities mENEE (165,833) (160,654) (6,126) -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (639) (1,040) = =
Net assets FEE 173,786 124,548 15,284 =
Carrying amount of NCI RS AR EE 85,156 61,028 4,585 =
Revenue WA 292,335 290,243 27,235 -
Profit for the year FRE A 101,303 115,579 2,527 -
Total comprehensive income ZE =BT 105,461 107,549 2,930 =
Profit allocated to NCI DB TIFERERA SR 49,639 56,634 758 =
Dividend paid to NCI AT IEERE R AR S 27,548 80,728 = =
Cash flows from operating activities ~ #& 2 EEELMNIRE T 46,901 167,040 (12,559) =
Cash flows from investing activities RERDEENRER (1,882) (21,398) 238 =
Cash flows from financing activities BEEHEANIRS T (75,739) (114,091) 12,353 =

14 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

14 AHEHEESHEE

Group and Company

AEERARDQT
2013 2012
2013 £ 20124
$'000 $'000
THT F#IT
Equity securities: IRAFE 5
— Listed in Hong Kong (note 24(e)(i)) - EEHB LW (RKIEE24(e)i)) 23,702 =

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s and the Company’s listed
available-for-sale equity securities were not determined to be
impaired.

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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15 INVENTORIES 15 #&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statements of financial (a) HEMBRRABRANEERRE:
position comprise:
2013 2012
2013 20124
$'000 $'000
FHET FAxT
Raw materials JRAHL 66,680 61,975
Work in progress R 9,689 14,417
Finished goods B n 26,209 29,187
102,578 105,579
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) BRAXHIFABBENEFEZREITN

an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: T
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
$'000 $'000
FET FHT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEMNREE 438,679 445,176
Write down of inventories FERR 808 -
Reversal of write down of inventories BB 1F E MR = (143)
439,487 445,033

Notes to the Financial Statements
B ERRMI T

(REE]EAEIN - LUBTARER)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16 BEZERRERHEMERIE

Group Company
TEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 & 2012 % 2013 & 20124
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FHx FAT FET FAxT
Trade and bills receivable BHRUGRIENREIWEE 241,024 189,267 = =
Less: allowance from doubtful B REREES
debts (note 15(b)) (P& 15(b)) (728) = = =
240,296 189,267 - =
Deposits, prepayments and other & B
receivables HAtb FEUGRIA
— third parties —E=5 16,486 33,890 289 267
Amount due from subsidiaries R NCIE - - 143,506 121,690
256,782 223,157 143,795 121,957

All of the other trade and other receivables (including amounts due
from subsidiaries), are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expense within one year.

(@) Ageing analysis:
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of

PG M8 5 WA M L R UHOR (B 45 &
Yo bl 1 Bl 3R ) B TRHIR — S A SRR A
FsZ -

(a) BRERDAT :
RBEHKR  BHEBARBKREZIE (T
FTAE S EYGRIE R H A FEIGRIEA ) &
REBEZEHHRINBRRRBEEORE DT

allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: R
Group
rEE
2013 2012
2013 % 2012
Trade Bills Trade Bills
receivable receivable receivable receivable
B 5 RWRIE EWERE BSREYHIEA JEW IR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FHET FHET FAT FET
Less than 30 days LH30H 123,485 3,419 96,255 1,778
31 -90 days 31-90H 82,953 16,128 37,865 8,632
91 - 180 days 91 -180H 5,536 - 36,423 1,222
181 — 365 days 181-365H 6,976 - 3,532 -
Over 365 days 88365 H 1,799 - 3,560 -
220,749 19,547 177,635 11,632

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis: (continued)
Trade and bills receivable are due within 30 to 180 days from

the invoice date. Further details on the Group’s credit policy
are set out in note 24(a).

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group s satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is directly written off against
trade debtors and bills receivable (see note 2(j)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

16

25

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

W ek TR I Lt P W RR TR ()
R AT ()
BHENARERREAETASE

302180 AR - BEAAEEEERK
KA — B IEH R MR 24(a) ©

BRERARERRERE

BHEBARBREENREBRERA
EERRRLE  [RIFAKER R AEEH
REMARIE - BRI RBEERNEER
BB S EBARBKRER (2=
2(j)i)) °

AEE RS (DIEREREBERY
B BRBIT :

Group
TEE
2013 2012
2013 £ 20124
$'000 $'000
FHET FHAT
At 1 January M1ATH - -
Impairment loss recognised ERERREEE 728 =
At 31 December ®12A318 728 =

As of 31 December 2013, an impairment loss of HK$728,000
(2012: nil) was recognised and provided for as a result from
the assessment of the Group’s trade receivables due from
third parties of HK$728,000 (2012: nil) that individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired trade
receivables mainly relate to customers who are in financial
difficulties and the likelihood of recoverability is expected
to be in doubt. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Trade receivables due from third parties that are past due
but not impaired relate to creditworthy customers who have
maintained a close working relationship with the Group and
have consistent payment records.

MR2013F 12 A31 8 » REBFHER
FZHHE 5 EIFL 728,000 7T (2012
F:T)BERETARE - mERLET
12 7 728,000/ 7T (20124 : T ) KIRE
B8 - ERETE ARENE S EWZKIBE
BERRFIB FHRRE - KA EAATEE
HEREM - AEBRERZEESIEFE
ARG -

EEMERRENEEE=TT0E ZREW
RESEEASE-HRFETHNAERH
% WHEARHENKCHENEERFNE
Eo

IERZEREBERAR —B—ZFFi
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PR ERAR BT RE

(Br=AEHAN

AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(0

(d)

16

B 5 BWGRIR R H ARG IE (&)

Trade and bills receivable that are not impaired: () REENEVERRREKEE :
The aging analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that FEUR B 538 M ER R B M BRI O AT (48
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be RERIK LR TR ARE) AT
impaired are as follows:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
2013 £ 20126
$'000 $'000
FTHET FHT
Current RNER 211,908 141,975
Less than 1 month past due wEIDR 18 A 10,245 8,407
1 to 3 months past due BWHI1E31@A 7,627 31,683
More than 3 months past due A ERREA 3 (8 A 10,516 7,202
Amount past due el 28,388 47,292
240,296 189,267
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate A8 HA R KRB A B AR R B 3T B
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent REBMEZEEFPER -
history default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to B 5 FEWGRIE [ FE UL SR IR 70 & BRI R
the trade balance with a number of independent customers B - B s EERBEN ESRIA S T
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on AEBERR IR S EHENBIRFHNE
past experience, management believes that no impairment SEEHBR o BIBATER  BEERA
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there ZEEREAELRERE  BEEEXR
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the W E XS E) B &R IER A 28U
balance are still considered fully recoverable. 8] -
Trade and other receivables pledged for banking (d) HMBRITHEFEERNEZERFERAEM

facilities:

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables with net book
value of $49,080,000 (2012: $57,673,000) are pledged as
security against bank loans of certain subsidiaries (see note
19).

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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MR2013F12 8318 B @ F E A
49,080,000 7T, (2012 4F : 57,673,000 7T, )
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR P RE

(BR=AEEBIN

LA TR B AL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17 BERBELZEER

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () BHEekBESESHEBEHERE:
Group Company
rEE b NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 & 2012 5 2013 & 2012 4
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FHER FAT FET FET
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERE 61,179 79,180 131 119

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, cash at bank and in hand
placed with banks in the PRC amounted to $74,470,000 and
$30,608,000 respectively. Remittance of funds out of the PRC
is subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC

government.

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b)

generated from operations

20124 % 2013412 A31 8 F#HR
B R R 1T K FSEIR € 9 51 74,470,000
7T %.30,608,000 7T © £ B [E & & 78
= BT e DB I NE S I FTHRBR ©

BATSFREERERENH R

Note 2013 2012
Pt s 2013 £ 20124
$'000 $'000
FET FHET
Operating activities FEE—E )
Profit before taxation BA = A 175,820 170,381
Adjustments for: KR
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EHE 5(c) 72 52
Depreciation and amortisation & E & EE T 8 e
of fixed assets 5(c) 33,066 31,864
Finance costs BTSN 5(a) 19,645 21,085
Interest income F Bz 4(a) (1,123) (340)
Net loss on sale of fixed assets HERTEENERE 5(c) 378 844
Foreign exchange gain PE 7 2 5,523 (1,129)
Operating profit before changes &EE & % EhATEL %R
in working capital 233,381 222,757
Decrease in inventories GFERD 4,774 14,660
(Increase)/decrease in trade H 5 e GRIA K H A R U IR
and other receivables (3Em),Ed (31.773) 4,110
Increase/(decrease) in trade B 5 M 50E R E R 3R
and other payables i, G ) 18,296 (40,237)
Cash generated from operations L& SRS 224,678 201,290
IERIEREBER A G —E—=FFH 105
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

18 BEZEAREREMENTE

Group Company
TEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 F 2012 % 2013 F 20124
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FHT FAT FHT FHT
Trade and bills payable BIRNFERENEER 51,340 40,288 = =
Other payables and accruals EMENRIERESER 36,213 29,633 709 92
Amount due to the Controlling JE - 1R AR AR SRR TE
Shareholder
—Mr Guo Yumin -HERESE 536 518 - -
88,089 70,439 709 92
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within FrE 8 5 B FRIE R H AL B FRIBTE AR —F
one year or are repayable on demand. NEEBIIRERKRFE ©
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RIERR - ESERARBNRE(EIAE
creditors and bills payable (which are included in trade and other SR FIE R E A R FIEA) £ EE A B
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRECDATEAT -
Group
TEH
2013 2012
2013 % 20124
Trade Bills Trade Bills
payable payable payable payable
g5 25
FEF0E ENRE FEERIA ARNEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FHT FET FAT FHT
Due within 1 month or on demand REIRE DY 20,458 20,967 22,170 4,933
Due after 1 month but within TEA&1E 318 A NEIHA
3 months 7,301 - 7,026 4,933
Due after 3 months but within 3@ A% B 6EAREIH
6 months 681 - 670 -
Due more than 6 months 6 16 A &2 81 1,933 - 556 =
30,373 20,967 30,422 9,866
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19 BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2012 and 2013, the bank loans were repayable as

19

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RITERK

R2012F % 2013612 A31 8 SRITERER

follows: HAGO R
Group Company
rEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 F 2012 % 2013 F 20124
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FTHET THET FHERT T
Within 1 year or on demand 1 FAskEEK 271,091 277,504 41,500 -
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F&EB2FR 213 24,667 = =
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FBEBSFA 870 = - =
1,083 24,667 - -
272,174 302,171 41,500 -
Group Company
REE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 & 2012 4F 2013 & 20124
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FTHET FHET THET FET
Representing: B :
Secured HHEM 246,734 277,504 41,500 -
Unsecured FaS i 25,440 24,667 - -
272,174 302,171 41,500 -

At 31 December 2012 and 2013, the banking facilities of the Group
totalling $351,505,000 and $496,388,000 respectively were utilised
to the extent of $302,171,000 and $272,174,000 respectively. Certain
bank loans were secured by assets of the Group as set out below:

20124 K 2013412 318 "&EE A&
% Bl /351,505,000 7% 7T & 496,388,000 % JT
RIER1TRE & B 9 Bl &) A 302,171,000 7T &
272,174,000 7T - HASKENEERRNE T
IRITEREHIIOT ¢

2013 2012
2013 & 20124

$'000 $'000

FET FET

Restricted cash SRHE S 49,704 -
Fixed assets EE&E 280,551 289,802
Trade receivable =3 e 49,080 57,673
379,335 347,475

IERZEREBERAR —B—ZFFi
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PR ERAR BT RE

(B=EEHI -

AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19

20

BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2013, the banking facility of the Company was
guaranteed by Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science
Technology Co., Ltd.

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios,
as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants the drawn
down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 24(b). As at 31 December 2013 none of the covenants relating
to drawn down facilities had been breached (2012: $nil).

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) organised by the relevant
local authorities whereby the subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the Scheme at the rate of 10% — 20% of the
eligible employees’ salaries for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2013.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $25,000 ($20,000 prior to June 2012). Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

For those forfeited contributions under the Scheme and MPF
scheme the amounts could not be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond the
contributions described above.

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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RITER ()

RRAFRITERBLHFIRR AR EDRIRE
RABHRMHIELR -

AEEMMERITRERGFTERKBEERNEEE
TEEBGBLERNHR®  HATEHSREEE
PREEBERZBEFT R & o WASKEERREH - AT
REMWBEBZEREER ~AEETHERA
GETZELE FHASEERRDES
[2\ B & 3 — P RF B A BT 7 24(b) - 72013 F
12A318 ' A5EHREERECRRNORES
RAEVETE (201246 « 4&) o

EEEKER

REMFCR KRGS

RIEFBEMNEBSESERERTE  PREBA
7] 2 B fh A RSt 5 A R 4B A A0 R R R FORIR
BRETEI(TETEI]) - B - REZE2012F &
2013F 12 A31BIEFE - WBARIZAMG 2
EHAEENEEREEFH ©10%-20% MHEFK ©

REFENBREESRFERESHENEHIRZ
EREBRMBIEIREB THEES X HEBHIER
Bosral([aESTal)) - aEestElA—E
HBYZEABTENAEHICRIKETE - B
wESHE  BEREEESEANEIED
HERIEEMRBUWAS% R - LT A
I A.25,0007T (20124 6 A #720,0007T ) & £
PR o AT B KBNS o

AEETAEAEERFEAEETINE
R AR DR B HFOKE -

B B AN ARE Y EE M EZET A
BARABNERNREE -
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the sole shareholder passed
on 22 June 2012, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “share option
scheme”) was approved and adopted to provide grantees with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interest in the Company. The
purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain the best
available personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees
(full-time), directors and advisers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

21

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

URAGEEUARD/BERNRS

RIEME RN 2012466 A 22 BRBHLER
HE BAAHBEREARE S ([ BT
B ) R E RIS - AR AREESRER
ANRK BB - BRERT 85 TR g
REMTHAAR  MALERE (2R) 3
N FARS IR LR SMEB) A M (R AN E TS AR
Ijj °

SHBBRER T 5 AEHRBAR T — R E
B - AR 2 B -

(a) BHEHAKIREGDOT :
Options granted to

BFUTALTHERE

Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees Total
i BH 5% B ZHR = == st
22 June 2012 14 July 2013 13 July 2018 200,000 800,000 1,000,000
201246 A 22 H 20137 A 14H 201847 H13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2014 13 July 2018 300,000 1,200,000 1,500,000
201246 A22H 20147 A 14 H 201847 H13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2015 13 July 2018 400,000 1,600,000 2,000,000
20126 A 22H 201547 14 H 201847 413 H
22 June 2012 14 July 2016 13 July 2018 500,000 2,000,000 2,500,000
20126 H22H 20167 H14H 201847 H13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2017 13 July 2018 600,000 2,400,000 3,000,000
20126 A22H 20177 R 148 201847 H13H

2,000,000 8,000,000 10,000,000
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 21 UBRALEURMGAEBRNRS (E)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(9]

The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) BRENERMNELITEEDT :
share options are as follows:
2013
2013 F
Exercise price  No. of options
TEE BRERE
'000
T
Outstanding at the beginning of the year ~ F¥]i# K771 A HK$0.6029 % 7T 10,000
Forfeited during the year FRNERUK -
Outstanding at the end of the year FREAITEE HK$0.6029 7 7T 10,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FARAITHE HK$0.6029 % 7T 1,000
There was no share option exercised during the year as the AR ERBERARR - MEBRERER
vesting period was not lapsed. T o
The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had an 2012612 A31 B W RIT{EBRER

exercise price of HK$0.6029 and a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 2.08 years.

#IEARR 5 2.08 4F

TEEA0.60298 T - #A T INEFHA

Fair value of share options and assumptions: (0 BERENAFEREBR:

The fair value of services received in return for the share
options is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimated fair value of share options is
measured based on binomial lattice model:

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value per share at measurement date

Share price

Exercise price per option

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted
average volatility used in the binomial
lattice model)

Option life

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate

EERG AR BREN A FEERE
BRENQFEEE - REBRENR
FEEMGFHEZAAREENGE -

BIRER N FER R

RETERBNERRN A FE

SBBIENTTEE

TEHYR IR (DA — AR
B DI P8R IR R R )

BBRE AR
EHRE
e

2013
2013 &

HK$0.7786 /& T
HK$1.73 % T
HK$0.6029 /& T

46.8592%
5 years
2.4179%
0.5809%
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21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 21

(CONTINUED)

(9]

22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 22

Fair value of share options and assumptions: (continued) (c)

The expected volatility is based on past few years historical

price volatility of similar listed companies. Expected dividends
are based on management’s best estimation. The risk-free
rate is referenced to the yields of Hong Kong Exchange Fund
Bills/Notes issued by the Hong Kong Government with the

corresponding time to maturity of the option.

Except for the conditions mentioned above, there were no

other market conditions and service conditions associated

with the share option scheme.

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a)

financial position represents:

mE

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

URAGHEURDBERNRS ()

BRENDFERRBR  (8)
FEHREDENRU LT AR NBERF
EVE L BIRKIE - HHRBDERERE
MR EfEE - BRRMNXT2REBRA
3217 ERRE AR R A HRIE R IR R M B8
SNEESES RIEMREE

B _EAIGRAESN - B SRR AT BIARRRAY
Al 0 R ARFS R IF o

BAFS R R A Y TS B

FEPBARRRAMENABIRLE

2013 2012

2013 20124

$'000 $'000

FET FET

As of 1 January ®1A1H 19,676 18,938
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FARBBISTHAER

for the year 3,666 6,275

Provision for PRC income tax for the year FRFER BIFTE R EE 43,966 43,822

Income taxes paid BT H (43,711) (49,349)

Exchange difference PEH ZRE 598 (10)

As of 31 December ®12A31H 24,195 19,676
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 22 #HGREB#ERRKRAMVFER (&)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERIAELHEEERARE:

(i)  The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) () MRAEEEFBA K AERIELE
recognised in the Group’s statement of financial BmaE/(8fE) NEAKIDH RF
position and the movements during the years are as NN
follows:

Pre PRCdividend  Fair vale

Unrealised  Fixed assets  operating Government  Accrued Provision for withholding  adjustment
profit depreciation  expenses grant  expenses inventories tax  ofassets Total

B HERS -1

AN RENE SENRx  BARE EHEX  BRER  REOW AVERER &
§000 §000  $000 SO0 SO0 SO0 000 000 $000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

A1 January 2012 R012E1A18 849 % 93 = = n B ) B5%)
Exchange adjustments EHHEE = = i) = - - - - )
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss NERRT
HEYAERN 709 - (515) 259 - B 319 7 364
At 31 December 2012 R2012%E128318 1,558 58 437 259 - 5 @.0m) (201) 45
AL lanuary 2013 RABEIA1A 1,558 58 7 259 - 5 ) (201) 5
Exchange adjustments A% - 2 10 1 12 6 - - 37
Charged(credited) to profit or loss RERRR
&/ GIA) 1035 = (253) (107) 832 B H109) 7 (143)
At 31 December 2013 m2013¢ 12R318 2,593 60 194 159 844 392 (4,176) (127) (61)
3 These amounts include the provision of withholding * Z % e E e ER2012K%2013
tax on profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to FER KB QR E
HK$4,969,000 and HK$4,177,000 for the year 2012 & o Bl 4E H 4,969,000 7T
and 2013 respectively, and the reversal of deferred tax 54,177,000 T B - AR
liabilities on withholding tax in respect of dividends B £20129F K2013F12A4
paid amounting to HK$8,121,000 and HK$2,072,000 BMNALFEREMNREENN
during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, 7 Bl 898,121,000 7T &
respectively. 2,106,000 % T HEE IR B &
B[E o
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22 |INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b)

(a)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

(i) Reconciliation to the statements of financial position:

22

mREMBIRRRANAER (F)

(b)

ERIABLEHAEEREAE - (H)

(i) MBIRRERANER

2013 2012
2013 F 20124
$'000 $'000
FET FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in  FABF 75k L 2R FERR D IR AE ¢ T8
the statement of financial position BEFRE 4,242 2,317
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised  FABATSAR L3R WSRO IR A 7 TH
in the statement of financial position & {&/F%8 (4,303) (2,272)
(61) 45
23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 BX - RERKRE
Movements in components of equity (a) RERARTDNEEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REBFRE HEm O SAEKE D 8 B K AP
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity RERNH RN G ERRF TR - AR
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in AR R AR e WY (E R IAR K 38 9 B B
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual BEEERIIOT
components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:
Fair
Share Share Capital value Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
Bx  R#EE  EARE  AVERE  REEA Ait
Note §000 §/000 §/000 §'000 §/000 §'000
i3 Thn Thn Thn Thn Thr Thn
Balance at 24 February 2012 RNNEIRUBNER
(date of incorporation) (ks - - - - - -
Issuance of shares upon incorporation R TR - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2ElELE - = = = (2862) (2862)
Avising from Reorganisation BRES (o) 3,000 - 81,95 - - 84,955
lssuance of ordinary shares upon infial RERAREEREAEAR
public offering, net off issing costs (i &f6a) (c) 1,150 123,69 = = = 124,846
Balance at 31 December 2012 RANENANA
and 1 January 2013 R2013E1 A1 B 4150 123,69% 81,955 - (2.862) 206,939
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENREE - - - 3505 41,430 44,935
Dividend to shareolders Rk (o) - = = = (41,500) (41,500)
Balance at 31 December 2013 RNBENA BRER 4150 123,69 81,955 3,505 (293) 210374
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

X meEkRE (&)
RE

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED) 23
(b) Dividends (b)

(i)

(ii)

Dividends payable and proposed to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the year:

Final dividend proposed after
the end of the reporting period of
HK$0.08 (2012: HK$0.1)
per ordinary share

R EEATRE
TR E A% 0.08 7T
(2012 : 0.1%7T)

(i)

BRI T AR EERERNFE
MRS, -

2013 2012
2013 5 20124
$'000 $'000
FHBxT FET
33,200 41,500

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year:

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2012 of HK$0.1 per share amounting to a total
dividend of HK$41,500,000 was approved and paid
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Dividends in respect of previous years approved
and paid during the year ended 31 December 2012
represented dividends declared and paid by Sheen
China Group Holdings Inc., Qingdao Ener Packaging
Technology Co. Ltd. and Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging &
Printing Science Technology Co. Ltd.

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

(ii)

RS BRI R A ALE W AR IR
BERRERSASE -

RRRAFHETRIRE T 57 B LA
A ERRIERE

R2013F 12 A318 » AAAHLER
REE T SRR 2012412 A 31 HAIAR
BAFHEIT41,500,0007T © ERETT
0.17T°

R2012F 12 A31 BHERIRER
BREREBIBESEBIZERERA
Al BERFEREREARARM
TLERIEZR B 2 BRI B B R A ALK
BWTHEARTEERE



23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(0

Notes to the Financial Statements
B ERRMI T
LA TR ERL)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Br=BEEBHN -

23 EX - RERRE(E)

Share capital (I %S
Authorised and issued share capital ETE REEITRA
2013 2012
2013 F 20125
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BAEE x| B anE ] 8
Note ("000) $'000 ('000) $'000
BEE (FR) T (Fh) FHET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FREEO.014ET
HK$0.01 each FORREE) S 2,000,000 20,000 2,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, issuedand T E{TRAZ
fully paid: HEER :
At 1 January m1H1H 415,000 4,150 - -
Issuance of shares upon N RIIBAVAL
incorporation BTG 0] = = - -
Issuance of shares upon REHAREITRG
reorganisation (iii) - - 300,000 3,000
Issuance of shares upon initial ~ F &R AR E R
public offering BEITIR D (iv) - - 115,000 1,150
At 31 December M12HA31H 415,000 4,150 415,000 4,150
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIEHAIN  ABTTRER
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(c) Share capital (continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Notes:

(i) The Company was incorporated on 24 February 2012 with
an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On the same date, the
Company issued 1 share at par value of HK$0.01 each.

(i) On 21 June 2012, the Group completed the Reorganisation
to rationalise the Group’s structure in preparing for the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. As a result of the Reorganisation, the Company
became the holding company of the Group on 21 June 2012.

(iii) Pursuant to the resolutions in writing of all the shareholders of
the Company passed on 21 June 2012, the authorized share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$20,000,000 by the creation of an additional 1,962,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each. In addition 299,999,999 shares,
all credited as fully paid at par, were allotted and issued to
shareholder of the Company.

(iv) On 13 July 2012, the shares of the Company was listed on the
Stock Exchange following the completion of its initial public
offering, 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were
issued at a price of HK$1.20 per share under the initial public
offering. On 3 August 2012, the Over-allotment Option has
been exercised in full to cover over-allocations in the Placing.
Under the Over-allotment Option, an aggregate of 15,000,000
ordinary shares have been allotted and issued by the Company
at HK$1.20 per share. Proceeds of HK$ 1,150,000 representing
the par value of these ordinary shares, were credited to the
Company’s share capital and the excess of the proceeds over
the nominal value of the total number of ordinary shares issued
after offsetting share issuance costs of HK$123,696,000, were
credited to the share premium account of the Company.

(v) Capital in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
1 January and 31 December 2011 represented the aggregate
amount of capital of the companies then comprising the
Group, after elimination of investments in subsidiaries.
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23 EX - REERBRE (&)
(0 BR&E(#)
LRSS G AR TSRS -
UEERAATAG FZHEER—ZMHIR
ZHE - AL BIR IR BN RIS EE
ZHRZEHAT -

P

(i) AN A R201252 8248 5 MK
3 R E B AR 5380,0008 T (5 B
38,000,000 % & A% M fE0.01 78 7T A9 B
) BB "AARETIRSREE
0.01 BITHIRY °

iy M2012F6A218 BEEARARK
DI AT ER £ - AEE TR ER
AR ERSRE - EH% - AAF
M201246 821 B AL B A IER

AR

(i) MREADFRZEBIREN2012F6A
QIHBEBNEEARZR BRER
1,962,000,000 A% & % M 1E0.01/%5 7T
B A% 1+ AN A 8% TE A% 2N §3.380,000
7 7T 3 A1 & 20,000,000 7T © L Sh -
299,999,999 % & FB 1L E{E A BR 5 {E 4
ERIRNDEBERFERBETTARAMRRE

(iv)  M20129F7A8138 " ARalRTEkH
BRAFABERERMDER T -
100,000,000 A% F AR EI{E 0.01 AT HY &
BRDBEERXARABEERER1.20%8
T BREETT - A20124F8 A3 H » A
BERREC BB TE A R R EMEEE
D - NARERIFBERRER TR
1.20 7 oA 3 K 3174 £ 15,000,000 A%
LBARAR D © 1,150,000 3 7T B P15 3%
B (ZELBEROEE) st ARRAR
ARAS - mATS RIERB LB BT EBRE
HEENB (NBRBRDEFEITRARE) B
123,696,000 7T + B aF AA R A AR
1B ERR ©

v) ERAEMBERRERAR201ME1IA1BR
12 A31 BMEREHHENHE R A0
BEREHERAEENS ARINER
HREE o



23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of the shares of
the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly comprises the following:

- the equity shareholders of the Company acquired
the non-controlling interests of QD Ener at
RMB39,600,000 (equivalent to HK$48,507,000)
pursuant to a share transfer agreement dated 13
March 2012;

- LXFY acquired the non-controlling interests
of JSSC at HK$3,113,000 pursuant to a share
transfer agreement dated on 28 August 2012;

- the contribution made by the Controlling
Shareholder before the Reorganisation by
waiving the right to receive an amount payable
by SCGHI; and

- the difference between the nominal value of
shares of the subsidiaries acquired over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the Reorganisation
of the Group;

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 EX - REERBRE (&)
(d) HENEERAR
() BROEE
RRAD i (E FE AN A A B AR 1) T (B £ 8%
TR A TR B R T 18 2008 2 RS
HZ%E o

RIEFEFSARDE  AARHK
EERTNESAHIIERTAR
AR - MESERERZE RS A
& ARRIARMEN—REKE
BRI ER o

(i) B
ERFBEIZBRETIIEA

- ARARZREREAHSA
201243 A 13 B R
#73% LAA B # 39,600,000 7T
(#8% 1 48,507,000 7T ) W
8% QD Ener RYIEIZRRR #EZS ¢

= LXFY 4R #& B 5} A20124F8
A28 B MR HEEGZE U
3,113,000 JT U B8 JSSC &Y
IR RS

- PBRBRERAEAAEBINRE
U BY SC GHI & 1+ 2k I8 Hy # 7|
MELMNER © &

- FWRENBERARNEERER
HEARBRBEANEHEHE
THEARBHNRNNAEE
BEZRMNER
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(B=EEHI -

AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(i)~ Statutory reserve (continued)

General reserve fund

Pursuant to the applicable PRC regulations, all PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate
10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year/
period losses) to the statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of each relevant
PRC subsidiary. The transfer to the statutory reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to equity
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of
the subsidiary.

(iv)  Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve presents the fair
value of the share options granted to employees of
the Group in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted by share-based payments in note 2(p)(ii).

(v)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
information of operations with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars.

(vi)  Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available for sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
notes 2(e).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(e)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the equity
and debt in a balanced position and ensure that there was
adequate working capital to service its debt obligations. The
Group’s gearing ratio, being the Group’s net debt over its
shareholder’s equity as at 31 December 2012 and 2013 was
67% and 42% respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements in the current and
prior years.

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arise in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described

below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade and bills receivable are due within 30 to 180
days from the date of invoice. Debtors with balances that
are more than 1 year from the date of invoice are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 56.8% (2012: 41.6%) of the total trade
debtors were due from the Group’s largest customer and
75.2% (2012: 75.4%) of the total trade debtors were due
from the Group’s five largest customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statements of
financial position.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 16.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
management and directors when the borrowing exceeds
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the respective reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B ERRMIEE
(BB BEREN - BT AERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 24 BIEERMEERQANE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FEBESEBS(HE)
Group AEE
As at 31 December 2013
R20135128318
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
BRRABRERE
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying 1 year or within less than
amount Total  on demand 2 years 5 years
15R BB1F BB2%
REE &t EZX 825/ B5% R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Ti#n TiEn FThEr T Fix
Trade and other payables B AERTEREENE 64,620 64,620 64,620 - =
Bank loans RITEH 272,174 278,865 271,762 217 886
336,794 343,485 342,382 217 886
As at 31 December 2012
®2012%12A31R
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
RHAKEERSTE
More than More than
Within Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying 1 year or within less than
amount Total  ondemand 2 years 5 years
15 R BB1E BiB2E
REE At EEX B25ER B5%R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Thx FHL TR TATL THL
Trade and other payables BAENTEREENE 55,310 55,310 55,310 = =
Bank loans BITER 302,171 315,118 289,582 25,536 -

357,481 370,428 344,892 25,536 =
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B R AL

(B =HBEHI -
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

AT RERL)

24 BBEBREERAFEGE)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FEBESEBS(HE)
Company FNUNE|
As at 31 December 2013
R20126128318
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
BRRABRERE
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying 1 year or within less than
amount Total  on demand 2 years 5 years
15R BB1F BB2%
REE &t EZX 825/ B5% R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
THR FhR TARL TAR TERL
Trade and other payables B AERTEREENE 109 109 109 - =
Bank loans RITEH 41,500 Mn,1m M,1m = -
41,609 41,881 41,881 - -
As at 31 December 2012
®2012%12A31R
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
RORERRENRE
More than More than
Within Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying 1 year or within less than
amount Total  ondemand 2 years 5 years
15 BB1E BiB2E
REE At EEX B25ER B5%R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
ThR FHL TR TATL THL
Trade and other payables BAENTEREENE 92 92 9 = =
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 24

(CONTINUED)

(9]

Interest rate risk

(9]

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans

and cash at bank issued at variable rates that expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group does not
use financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate

risk. The Group defines “net borrowings” as being interest-

bearing financial liabilities less interest-bearing investments.

The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (i) below.

(i

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group'’s interest-generating financial assets and

interest-bearing financial liabilities at the balance sheet

date:

Group

Net fixed rate borrowings:

Bank loans
Other payables

Net variable rate borrowings:

Bank loans
Less: Cash at banks

Restricted cash

Total net borrowings

Net fixed rate borrowing as a
percentage of total net
borrowings

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B mEEREE R A FE (H)

MEER

AEBENMNERREEHRITERTE
RITRSEL - ARFASAEBERT
ReERENERR - AKEYEERSH
PTET RS FRER - NREERE [F
BE| REtEERAERN BRE - A%
B EEEEENNETEAEN T -

() FEMA
TRELARENH L EBAER

FFESRBBEREERNA XA
A -
A
REE
2013 2012
20135 20124
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BREF = ERHE
% $'000 % $'000
BiAtk TH#T Bk T
FEEED:
BITER 6.34 (115,558) 6.72 (37,001)
Htb B - - 5.60 (1,233)
. (msssy (38,.234)
EIEER
BITER 1.31-7.20 (156,616) 6.23-7.22 (265,170)
A RTER 0.01-0.36 60,549 0.01-0.36 79,180
XBHRE 0.36 49,704 -
(46,363) (185,990)
FETEE (161,921) (224,224)
FEBERIEFETEE
MBS
71.4% 17.1%

IERZEREBERAR —B—ZFFi
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 24 BiiRERBREERAFRE (&)

124

(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) Fl=E R ()
(i) Interest rate profile (continued) () FIEAEE (&)
Company PN
2012
2013 F 20124
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRAIE ERHE
% $'000 % $'000
Bk TAT Bidlt FEL
Net variable rate borrowings: FFEER
Bank loans HBITER 1.31 (41,500) = =
Less: Cash at banks A RTER 0.01 131 = 119
(41,369) 119
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BRI

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general
decrease/increase of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group's profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately $522,000 (2012: $1,395,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group's interest expense that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the respective reporting period
and had been applied to floating rate instruments
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
at that date. The analysis does not take into account
exposure to fair value interest rate risk arising from
fixed rate instruments as the Group does not hold any
fixed rate instruments which are measured at fair value.
This analysis has been performed on the same basis for
2012.

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases made by the PRC subsidiaries which give rise
to receivables, payables, cash balances and bank loans that
are denominated in United States dollars (“USD"). Presently,
the Group has no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in HKD, translated using the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial information of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 MEEREERAFEE)

(d)

BERER

NEBETAS RS R £ Z 2R E B
BARRIHEE REKE - EHAEERKEE

HEAET(ETDIENEEFRIE - &
NFE - REGERRIBITER  B/E - K
S B EA BESNE R R A EPBUR ©
PR B R R R

TEREHIIAEEREE APAZ N EEE
B ZERERBRIIRRARERMNIEE
BRI EREHENDEREEXRAE
MEL - RERBOME - ABREAET
SR SPATRE IR BVEAME R E - i
HINEEBH B ENRARE 2 REET
EEMZRWEFEENA

Exposure to USD
(expressed in
Hong Kong dollars)
EEk (B TREN)

2013 2012

2013 £ 20124

$'000 $'000

FHET FH&T

Cash and cash equivalents ReRALEFMEIER = 859
Net exposure arising from recognised assets EMRAE Kk BEMELNFER

and liabilities - 859

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits that would arise
if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

TRIVRAEE BRSNS R E IR
fﬁﬁ$%7§"$&iﬁﬁﬁﬁ7¥<§§ﬁﬂ B O TE

IERZEREBERAR —B—ZFFi
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PR ERAR BT RE

(Br=AEHAN

AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 24 HiEERER N FE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E#¥RER(E)
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
HHRRF R i )
Ex REZBEA R RREBHE
EH(FE) MEE A (TE) Eof-%=
% $'000 % $'000
% FHET % FA&T
usD ET 5 - 5 32
usD ETT (5) = (5) (32)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit after tax measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into HKD
at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date for
presentation purposes. The sensitivity analysis assumes that
the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the balance
sheet date. The analysis excludes differences that would result
from the translation of the financial information of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair values measurement

()

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorized
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

Fair value at

31 December

2013
R2013E
12A318
MATE
$'000
TiEn
Recurring fair value BREATEGE
Measurements
Assets: BE:
Avallable-for-sale financial assets: iESREE -
-~ Listed equity securities - FikAES 23,702

24

Fair v

31 December categorised into 2012

R12ANBEEAT

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rup R E
(B A RSN + SAVBTT R ERfL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ERERERER A FE (F)

(e) AFEFTE
() EBAFESENEHEENEE

NHEES
TREVNARE@MARE ARIZEE
EERAESNERMTANFE - %
EeMIEERNEBUBRE
EADF 135 - [AFEHE] IR
EHM=EAFEER ANEBRR
LA MEE S AFTR A M A B/ A
BRREENEEZY  KmETAT
B EREMERBNER

s FERMHE: REMAF—
EBRBAE(AEREELA
BRFE R BAERRM S
REABRE) Kt EAFE

s F_ERMGHE:ERAFE_E
R AEBIREE - ER
MATBISRBAE) WIRREKR
TABRE ABRGAERF
B FABRBAERER
R SEIENBAE

o EZEGMHE: RAEAT
TEREAERT EATE

Fair value at

alue measurements as at 31 December Fair value measurements s at
31 December categorised into
R2NE
124318

4278

R12A3BEBUT

EROTETESE ERLTEEHE

Level 1
£-Ef
§'000
T

23,702

Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£=ER -ER FER  £=ER
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000
TEx  TER TAn TR TR TEn

Level 2

£ZER

During the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2013,
there were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3.

B £20134F &2012412 A 31
ALEFE - REsmIAEAYE
NE—EBR F_EBRRE=BHK
BHEEVE
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PR ERAR BT RE

(REEIERIN - ABTTRENR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(CONTINUED)

24 MEEREERAFEE)

(e) Fair values measurement (continued) (e) 2AFEEGE)
(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at (i) FEENFEIENEHEEREE
other than fair value BN FE
The carrying amounts of the Group's and the N B K AR AR B AN Bl SH R
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or AENERTANKESRE  HA
amortised cost are not materially different from their R20124F &2013F12A318 &
fair values as at 31 December 2012 and 2013. DEEDFITAK °
25 COMMITMENTS 25 RiE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December (a) R20BENRANMNBARBITRARTHK
2013 not provided for in the Financial Information were ERPELHBENEREEDT :
as follows:
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
$'000 $'000
FHxT FAxT
Contracted for =EIES| 4,783 772
(b) At 31 December 2012 and 2013, the total future (b) M2012F K 20135128318 REF

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:

THEEEERNARRREEENRAE
BT AT

2013 2012

2013 F 2012 %

$'000 $'000

FHET FAxT

Within 1 year 15K 6,360 911
After 1 year and within 5 years 1FRESFR - 228
6,360 1,139

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties and
plant held under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of one to two years, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, transactions with

the following party are considered to be related party transactions:

Name of related party Relationship with
the Group

Director and the Controlling
Shareholder of the Group

Mr Guo Yumin

(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors as disclosed in note
7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
note 8, is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR P RE

(BREBEHEBAIN - LABTRER)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ERBBARS

REZE2013FR2012F 12 A31BIEFER
ETSEFETHRIWRBEE RS ¢

RS & BEAEEHNER
BEREE REEEEFRIEBRBIR

(a) EEEBASHMH
AEBTEEEABHI(BRIENRME?
PR S TE R MK S 8 AR R ST
TETRHMERFIR) HIINT

2013 2012

2013 F 2012 6

$'000 $'000

FHET FAT

Short-term employee benefits EHEBET 8,245 4,666
Post-employment benefits BEEIZEA) 340 367
Equity compensation benefits f&AHH (EE T 456 158
9,041 5,191

Total remuneration is disclosed in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

(b) Balances with related parties

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had the
following balances with related parties:

PR R R EE IR
-BERELE

Amount due to the Controlling Shareholder
and director — Mr Guo Yumin

(b)

SERARR 5 MY AR ER

R2013F K& 2012F 12 A31H » A&EE

A AT BRRERE T A5 ER -

2013
20135
$'000
THET

536

2012
20124
$'000
FAxT

518

The balance with the Controlling Shareholder are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

car
He

TF
fo

BRBERH SRR EER 2B REEK
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PR ERAR BT RE

(B=EEHI -

AT RERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(a)

(b)

(9]

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group reviews
annually the estimated useful lives of the assets in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are
based on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. In addition, these estimates could change significantly
as a result of change in customer preference and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management
measures these estimates at each reporting date.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatments of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatments of
such transactions are reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for deductible temporary differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the related tax benefits can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management reassess these estimates at each
end of the respective reporting period.
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29

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Investment property

The Group has temporarily sub-let a vacant warehouse but
has decided not to treat this property as an investment
property because it is not the Group’s intention to hold this
property in the long-term for capital appreciation or rental
income. Accordingly, this property is still treated an item of
other property, plant and equipment.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Sheen Tai Group
Holding Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI and beneficially
owned by Guo Yumin. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2013 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities
<<’£\°/§ FTHERDE 32 FHER] - B E
TRAENEH
H KFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BEMBHRELDFE IR - 2R TA

27

28

29

Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER AR M EE
(BB BEREN - BT AERL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

St fhEt R I (&)

(d) ®EWE
AEEERHIE-HEERE  BREN
RUIEYERSIREYE - ARAEEE
EREBSANEMFREESBEIESK
Ao Bt - AR BRR S E MY

¥ BERREER -
BEERRRERT

M2013F 128310 EFRE - A5EMNE
BT RRRERERS AIBREEIZRAERA
Al ZARIREBRLEHBETMAR YA E
REZHA ZEBUVERRIIHARGERHD
BIISHRER o

REBZ2013F12A31BLEECE
B REMNIEET - HEARZE
E’J/%EE‘/ =

BENSEAMBHEAH FESHMAEE
EHRETENEE2013F12 A31 B IEFEEH A
£ B KRR AR FBIRRIRANE T R —IEH 2%
Bl o 3% EEET RERBIE T 0] s AR &£ E A
Ak -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTBEHBSH 2%
BB EHBRENR

1 January 2014

201451 A1 8
1 January 2015
20151 A1 H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

AEBEEFAEZREEITRARNERINBNF

2 -B=AH AREEGHAER  RAZSE
CHEWNGE ¥T$%@E’W‘%¥ﬁ&5ﬁ%ﬁkﬁ

EREATE
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Five Year Financial Summary

TFEMBRE
Year ended December 31,
BZENRANMBLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
2013 & 20124 20114 20104 2009 fF
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FRxT FHET FHET FHET FHET
Turnover E S 706,134 699,555 674,983 550,534 264,457
Cost of sales SHEERA (439,487)  (445,033) (428,346)  (356,787)  (167,688)
Gross profit E7 266,647 254,522 246,637 193,747 96,769
Other revenue and net income B A BRI ES 12,777 16,188 26,003 13,759 25,024
Distribution costs 3 HR A (15,392) (11,941) (17,642) (13,366) (15,316)
Administrative expenses TS (67,943) (66,459) (43,169) (30,848) (19,069)
Other operating expenses HAh Qe (624) (844) (17) (3,405) (457)
Profit from operations S| 195,465 191,466 211,812 159,887 86,951
Finance costs B R AN (19,645) (21,085) (18,603) (16,394) (2,026)
Profit before taxation BADER 175,820 170,381 193,209 143,493 84,925
Income tax Frig®t (47,489) (46,453) (52,453) (38,331) (20,721)
Profit for the year FRBEF 128,331 123,928 140,756 105,162 64,204
Attributable to: BT ALHEL :
Equity shareholders of the Company ~ ZRABI#EZEA%E 77,934 70,076 81,426 60,684 38,084
Non-controlling interests SRR 50,397 53,852 59,330 44,478 26,120
Profit for the year FRER 128,331 123,928 140,756 105,162 64,204
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEAE
Total Assets BEE 861,630 790,131 829,317 719,996 615,263
Total liabilities weE (389,400)  (395,598) (438,514)  (444,661)  (412,072)
Net Assets FEE 472,230 394,533 390,803 275,335 203,191
Total equity attributable to equity A2 AR KRR
shareholders of the Company FEfhiaRER 382,489 333,505 241,176 157,281 118,758
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